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Q. PLEASE STATE YOUR FULL NAME, ADDRESS, AND OCCUPATION. 

A. My name is J. Randall Woolridge and my business address is 120 Haymaker Circle, 

State College, PA 16801. I am a Professor of Finance and the Goldman, Sachs & Co. and 

Frank P. Smeal Endowed University Fellow in Business Administration at the University 

Park Campus of the Pennsylvania State University. I am also the Director of the Smeal 

College Trading Room and the President of the Nittany Lion Fund, LLC. In addition, I am 

affiliated with the Columbia Group Inc., a public utility consulting firm based in 

Georgetown, CT. A summary of my educational background, research, and related business 

experience is provided in Appendix A. 

Q. WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY IN THIS 

PROCEEDING? 

A. I have been asked by the Kansas Citizens' Utility Ratemalung Board (CURB) to 

provide an opinion as to whether portions of the report of Staff Witness James Proctor 

should be marked 'Confidential' and therefore left out of the public domain. My particular 

focus is whether there is a need to withhold this information from the investment 

community. In providing this opinion, I am not evaluating the accuracy of Mr. Proctor's 

analysis or his conclusions. I am simply assessing whether, in my opinion, the information 

deemed 'confidential' in his report is of material value to investors. 

Q. PLEASE SPECIFY, IN GENERAL TERMS, THE ISSUES ADDRESSED BY 

MR. PROCTOR THAT YOU BELIEVE SHOULD BE MADE PUBLIC. 



A. In portions of his testimony that have been deemed 'confidential,' Mr. Proctor 

performs various financial analyses, and addresses and provides his opinion on a number of 

financial issues facing the company. The financial analyses include cash flow and ratio 

analyses, projected financial performance, pro forma financial statements and prospective 

capitalizations, and business and equity valuation. The issues primarily involve an 

assessment of various scenarios that may be undertaken by the company and/or 

Commission to address Aquila's financial woes and to restore the company's financial 

health. 

Q. PLEASE OUTLINE YOUR TESTIMONY. 

A. My testimony is outlined as follows: (1) I provide an overview of the alternative 

constituencies of the investment community who may have an interest in the contents of 

Mr. Proctor's report; (2) I review the financial disclosures of public companies and 

summarize the information that Aquila provides to the investment community through 

filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC); (3) I review how analysts use 

the financial data and disclosures of companies; (4) I provide examples of other types of 

information available to investors; and (5) given the foregoing discussion, I evaluate the 

need to keep portions of James Proctor's testimony 'confidential.' 

Q. PLEASE SUMMARIZE THE FINDINGS OF YOUR TESTIMONY. 

A. In this testimony I evaluate whether there is a need to keep portions of Staff Witness 

James Proctor's testimony 'confidential.' Initially, I review the financial data and 



disclosures provided to the investment community by Aquila and other publicly 

corporations. I illustrate how this information is typically used by the investment 

community in forecasting earnings and in making investment recommendations. I also 

provide examples of the information that is readily available to investors. After reviewing 

the 'public' and 'confidential' testimony of staff witness James Proctor, I conclude that 

most (if not all) of this infomation is already known to investors and therefore is reflected 

in the company's stock price. Consequently, in my opinion, making this material public 

information will not have a significant effect on the company's share price. Any concerns 

about the company incurring economic harm from public disclosure of the information is 

grossly overstated and underestimates the understanding and abilities of those in the market 

who analyze companies such as Aquila for a living. Furthermore, in these days of 'financial 

transparency,' and especially given Aquila's past, I believe that the company is better off 

being more open with its financial statements and disclosures. 

J n v V 

Q. WHAT ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT COMMUNITY 

CONSTITUENCIES FOLLOW COMPANIES AND ANALYZE FINANCIAL 

RESULTS OF COMPANIES LIKE AQUILA? 

A. There are a number of players in the investment community who collect and analyze 

financial data. These include the following: 

(1) rating agencies such as Standard & Poors, Moody's and Fitches examine 



financial statements and other corporate disclosures and publish detailed assessments of a 

company's credit worthiness and assign credit ratings to debt securities; 

(2) brokerage and other financial service firms use financial statements and 

disclosures to measure investment risk, to gauge potential returns based on projected 

revenues, earnings, and cash flows, and to make earning forecasts and investment 

recommendations; 

(3) investment information services such as (a) major financial data services 

(Reuters, Bloomberg); (b) investment advisory services, newsletters, and other print media 

(Value Line, Investment Digest); (c) internet sites (Yahoo, Market Guide, Zacks); and (d) 

media outlets (CNBC). 

In each case, a company's financial statements and other disclosures are often 

analyzed by trained professionals with advanced academic degrees and certifications (e.g., 

CFAs). Usually, the primary objective is to use the company's financial statements and 

disclosures to project future financial performance and make investment recommendations. 

Cn- 

Q. PLEASE DISCUSS THE PRIMARY DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL 

INFORMATION BY PUBLIC CORPORATIONS TO INVESTORS. 

A. Publicly-held corporations are required to submit their financial statements and to 

make other financial disclosures through filings with the Securities and Exchange 

Commission (SEC). Whereas critical situations do arise where companies must 



immediately disclose important financial data to the investment community, a company's 

quarterly earnings releases, financial disclosures, and SEC filings tend to get most of the 

attention. Companies typically release their quarterly financial results to investors through 

press releases, conference calls, and webcasts. This usually occurs within four to eight 

weeks of the end of each quarter. In the investment community, this reporting period is 

known as 'earnings season' and stocks prices can be quite volatile depending on whether a 

company's quarterly earnings are above or below the expectation of Wall Street, and 

whether other financial information was disclosed with the earnings. Investment firms and 

financial data providers tend to respond to these quarterly releases with short write-ups that 

summarize the key financial data disclosures. Schedule JRW-1 provides such a report from 

R.W. Baird, an investment company based in Chicago. After Aquila announced earnings, 

Baird published its report on March 7. The report provided summary earnings results for 

Aquila, and indicated that the company's financial results were inline with expectations. 

However, due to the heavy debt load, Baird maintained an 'underperform' rating on Aquila. 

Normally, within a month of the fourth quarter earnings announcement, companies 

file their annual report, known as the Form 10-K, with the SEC. The 10-K is probably the 

most thoroughly evaluated disclosure by a company. It includes a detailed description of 

the business, the major financial statements (income statement, balance sheet, and statement 

of cash flow) audited by a major accounting firm, footnotes to the financial statements that 

explain the accounting policies used, other financial data such as revenues and costs 



associated with difference business and product segments, detailed disclosure of assets and 

liabilities, an in-depth explanation by management of the previously year's results 

(Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), information on the management and 

directors of the company and their stock ownership, and other financial disclosures. After 

the release of the 10-K, brokerage firms and other investment information providers 

normally provide more in-depth evaluations of companies and their prospective 

performance. 

Baird updated its assessment of Aquila on March 15 after the company's March 14 

conference call and the filing of its 10-K. This report is provided in Schedule JRW-2. The 

company's disclosure that it was seeking buyers for regulated assets, which would produce 

cash to pay down debt, led Baird to upgrade the stock from an 'underperform' to a 'neutral' 

rating. 

Q. PLEASE HIGHLIGHT THE FINANCIAL DATA IN AQUILA'S 10-K THAT 

IS OF INTEmST TO THE INVESTMENT COMMUNITY. 

A. Initially, of course, the audited financial statements would be scrutinized. On the 

income statement, analysts look for growth in sales and earnings, profit margins, and 

expenses. On the balance sheet, the amount of cash, the growth in receivables, and payables, 

and the amount of debt would be evaluated. The cash flow statement is important for 

ascertaining where cash is being generated and where it is being spent. The notes to the 

financial statements are essential reading to examine the accounting policies used to put the 



1 financial statements together. 

Beyond the financial statements and notes, the MD&A section is considered 

essential reading. Here management explains the factors that have driven the financial 

results over the past year. I have included the MD&A section from Aquila's 2004 10-K as 

Schedule JRW-3. Most of the Aquila's 2004 MD&A centers on steps being taken to 

restructure the company business portfolio: 

This repositioning plan was developed to focus on building and 
maintaining the generation, transmission and distribution 
infrastructure necessary to provide our utility customers with safe and 
reliable service, while increasing the returns on invested capital in 
jurisdictions that lag behind those of our peers. We intend to focus on 
improving our returns through future rate activities and our recently 
initiated six sigma process improvement program, which we believe 
will bring our returns closer to those of our peers by the end of 2007. 

More in-depth information on financial performance is provided in the section 

entitled 'Financial Review.' This section provides details financial data such as revenue, 

cost of sales, operating expenses, and operating profit for different business segments. For 

Aquila, the Financial Review focuses on factors that affect earnings before interest and 

taxes (EBIT) as summarized beIow: 

This review of performance is organized by business segment, 
reflecting the way we managed our business during the periods 
covered by this report. Each business group leader is responsible for 
operating results down to earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT). 
We use EBIT as a performance measure as it captures the income and 
expenses within the management control of our segment business 
leaders. Because financing for the various business segments is 



generally completed at the parent company level, EBIT provides our 
management and third parties an indication of how well individual 
business segments are performing. Therefore, each segment 
discussion focuses on the factors affecting EBIT, while financing and 
income taxes are separately discussed at the corporate level. 

Schedule JRW-4 provides the Financial Review of Aquila's Domestic Utilities division. 

The review includes revenue, cost of sales, operating expense, and volume data by regulated 

electric and gas operations as well as by non-regulated operations. In addition, the Review 

includes a narrative that provides additional details regarding the drivers of revenues, costs, 

and expenses. 

Since investors are highly concerned with the future prospects of a company, the 

section entitled 'Forward Looking Information and Risk Factors' usually highlights (1) 

prospective developments that are likely to affect future perfonnance, and (2) some of the 

elements of uncertainty facing the company. This section of Aquila's 2004 10-K is 

provided as Schedule JRW-5. This section lays out actions that management plans to 

undertake in the future, such as rate cases to boost rates, and capital expenditures to satisfy 

long-term power generation and transmission needs. But it also highlights the risks 

associated with these actions, such as the possibility that rate increases may not be 

approved by regulatory commissions, and that financing may not be available for capital 

expenditures. 

More specific forward-looking financial data are also disclosed to investors in the 



1 10-K. Schedule JRW-6 shows Aquila' s projected capital expenditures (by business 

segment) from 2005-2007. These disclosures provide investors with estimated investment 

requirements that must be financed. They are also usually accompanied by some discussion 

points. In Aquila's case, the company stated: 

Our estimated Domestic Utilities capital expenditures will increase 
significantly in 2005 from 2004, primarily because of approximately 
$64.3 million of additional capital expenditures on our South Harper 
Peaking Facility and related transmission system upgrades. In 
addition, 2006 and 2007 capital expenditures include the anticipated 
cost of additional emissions control equipment at our generating 
facilities. 

Companies commonly disclose to investors required payments associated with 

financial obligations. Schedule JRW-7 shows the disclosed amounts of contractual cash 

obligations maturing in each of the next five years for Aquila. As stated in the 10-K: 

Our contractual cash obligations include maturities of long-term debt, 
cash payments for our two remaining long-term gas contracts, 
minimum payments on operating leases and regulated power, gas and 
coal purchase contracts, as well as the Elwood tolling contracts and 
merchant gas transportation obligations. 

Further details of financial obligations are provided in the footnotes to the financial 

statements. 

Q. HOW ARE THESE TYPES OF DISCLOSURES USED BY FINANCIAL 

ANALYSTS? 



1 A. Financial analysts, whether they work for rating agencies, investment firms, or 

2 financial data services, use these data and disclosures (along with other data sources) to 

3 construct pro forma financial statements. The emphasis is usually on projected earnings, so 

4 most of the analysis focuses on projecting future income statements. Analysts usually refer 

5 to these pro forma income statements as their "earnings model." Analysts start with a 

6 company's past and present financial statements and other financial disclosures. Projecting 

7 future eamings requires a forecast of revenue or sales growth, and estimates of the cost of 

8 sales, operating and maintenance expenses, depreciation, other income and costs, interest 

9 expense, and taxes. This exercise requires an evaluation of (1) economic, industry, and 

10 company growth, (2) trends in revenues and expenses, and (3) the impact of the new 

11 initiatives and developments, and usually includes the use of growth rates, common size 

12 financial statements, and financial ratios. 

1 3  Q. PLEASE PROVIDE AN EXAMPLE OF AN 'EARNINGS MODEL'? 

14 A. UBS, the global financial services and investment management firm, updated its 

1s forecasts and "earnings model' for Aquila on March 4 after the company announced 

1 6  earnings. This report is provided in Schedule JRW-8. With 2004 results in, UBS 

17 forecasted the following revenues, net income, and earnings per share (EPS) for Aquila for 

18 2005 and 2006: 

2005 2006 
Revenues 1,754 1,798 



Net Income (77) (22) 
EPS (0.20) (0.05) 

Q. ARE THESE EARNINGS FORECASTS AVAILABLE TO INVESTORS? 

A. Yes. There are several financial data services, including Zacks, First Call, IBES, 

and Reuters that collect, summarize, and publish Wall Street analysts' projected EPS 

forecasts for companies. These forecasts are readily available on the internet. Schedule 

JRW-9 provides the EPS forecasts for Aquila as found on Yahoo. For the fiscal year 2005, 

there are three analysts who have provided their EPS estimates, the average is (0.30). This 

average figure is presumed to be Wall Street's estimate EPS for Aquila, and stock prices 

tend to be very sensitive to changes in this estimate. For fiscal year 2006, the average for 

Aquila is (0.06). 

A v a i l U  to T n v e ~ m  

Q. PLEASE PROVIDE SOME EXAMPLES OF OTHER TYPES OF 

INF'ORMATION THAT IS AVAILABLE TO INVESTORS ON A COMPANY LIKE 

AQUILA? 

A. As discussed above, there are several different sources of information for investors. 

These sources include rating agencies, brokerage and financial service firms, financial data 

services, investment advisory services, internet sites, and media outlets. 

Q. PLEASE PROVIDE AN EXAMPLE OF THE TYPE OF INFORMATION 

PROVIDED BY RATING AGENCIES. 



A. Schedule JRW-10 provides copies of two recent reports from Fitch (page 1) and 

Standard & Poor's on Aquila. These are recent reports and both provide a brief synopsis of 

the impact of the company's repositioning plan on bond ratings. In both cases, the ratings 

remained the same, in part due to the uncertainty over the timing and execution of the asset 

sales. While these two reports are primarily narrative, other reports by rating agencies tend 

to focus on financial ratios which measures of liquidity and leverage to gauge the financial 

health of a company and its ability to repay its debts. 

Q. PLEASE PROVIDE AN EXAMPLE OF THE TYPE OF INFORMATION 

PROVIDED BY A BROKERAGE FIRM. 

A. There are only a few brokerage firrns that cover Aquila. Baird and UBS appear to 

provide the most research reports. Examples of these reports have been provided in 

Schedules JRW-1, JRW-2, and JRW-8. 

Q. PLEASE PROVIDE AN EXAMPLE OF THE TYPE OF INFORMATION 

PROVIDED BY A FINANCIAL DATA SERVICE. 

A. Financial data service providers include firms like Reuters and Bloomberg. These 

firms provide data to a wide variety of companies in the financial services industry, 

including banks, insurance companies, and brokerage as well as investment management 

firms. Schedule JRW-11 shows a financial analysis of Aquila that is provided by Reuters. 

It shows valuation, financial strength, efficiency, and management effectiveness measures 

for Aquila, the electric utility industry, and the S&P 500. Bloomberg provides a very 



similar type of analysis. 

Q. PLEASE PROVIDE AN EXAMPLE OF THE TYPE OF INFORMATION 

AVAILABLE FROM AN INVESTMENT ADVISORY SERVICE. 

A. The Value Line Investment Survey is one of the most widely read investment 

information services in the U.S. It is available in most major libraries. Schedule JRW-12 

provides the most recent Value Line report for Aquila, dated December 31, 2004. These 

reports have a standard form and are updated quarterly. The top section provides current 

stock price information as well as a historic chart. The middle section provides historic and 

projected information for a number of financial measures, including revenues, earnings, 

capitalization rates, and returns on common equity. The bottom section is a 400 word 

narrative on recent factors that have influenced company growth and performance. 

Q. PLEASE PROVIDE AN EXAMPLE OF THE TYPE OF INFORMATION 

AVAILABLE ON THE INTERNET. 

A. There are many investment information services on the internet, including 

-ahnn.c.om, www.honvers.com, and wwwinvnntor.cnm. Many of these services 

provide similar types of data and analyses. Schedule JRW-13 shows the summary financial 

analysis of Aquila as provided by Zacks (www.zackn.com). In addition to current stock 

price and valuation information, fundamental ratios are shown for growth rate, profit 

margins, returns on equity and assets, and capitalization ratios. 

C,-



Q. PLEASE REVIEW THE SCOPE OF YOUR TESTIMONY. 

A. I was asked to provide an opinion as to necessity of withholding the information 

deemed 'confidential' in the report prepared by Staff Witness James Proctor from the 

investment community. In the 'confidential' portion of his testimony, Mr. Proctor analyzes 

Aquila7s past and prospective performance using cash flow and ratio analyses, projected 

financial statements and capitalizations, and business and equity valuation. He also 

provides his opinion on a number of financial issues facing the company, including an 

assessment of various scenarios that may be undertaken by the company and/or 

Commission to address Aquila's financial woes and to restore the company's financial 

health. In my testimony, I have not examined the accuracy of Mr. Proctor's analysis or his 

conclusions, nor have I been asked to do so. 

Q. WHAT HAVE YOU COVERED IN YOUR TESTIMONY? 

A. I have reviewed Aquila's financial disclosures and summarized the information that 

the company provides to the investment community through filings with the SEC. I have 

shown how analysts use this financial data and disclosures to build earnings models and 

evaluate prospective performance, and I have also provided examples of the types of 

financial information and analyses available to investors. 

Q. WHAT HAVE YOU CONCLUDED FROM YOUR ANALYSIS? 

A. The 'confidential' material in the Proctor report consists of Mr. Proctor's analysis of 

the company's past and prospective performance as well as his opinions on a number 



scenarios aimed to improve the financial health of the company. It is my opinion that the 

data employed, the analyses performed, the opinions expressed, and the scenarios evaluated 

are largely known to the investment community, and therefore their disclosure would have 

no material effect on the company's stock price. Any concerns about the company incurring 

economic harm from public disclosure of the information is grossly overstated and 

underestimates the understanding and abilities of those in the market who evaluate 

companies such as Aquila for a living. As such, I believe that the Commission should 

provide for the full disclosure of the Proctor report. 

Q. WHY DO YOU BELIEVE THAT IT WOULD HAVE NO MATERIAL 

AFFECT ON THE COMPANY? 

A. As I noted in my testimony above, the information that is available publicly has 

enabled numerous analysts to make conclusions about Aquila. The confidential material 

in Mr. Proctor's report would not make a material contribution to the universe of data 

available to them. 

Q. GIVEN THE PUBLICLY AVAILABLE INFORMATION YOU DESCRIBE 

IN YOUR TESTIMONY, WHAT ARE SOME OF THE CONCLUSIONS THAT 

ANALYSTS HAVE COME TO REGARDING AQUILA'S FINANCIAL 

CONDITION? 

A. Below are a sampling of statements made in the publicly available resources I cite in 



1 testimony. These statements clearly show that analysts in general are aware of Aquila's 

current financial troubles and aware of future challenges. 

"LA announced it will selectively divest regulated utility assets to raise funds to 
further strengthen the company's balance sheet. This announcement underscores L A ' S  
remaining issue-too much debt for its remaining asset base." (Schedule JRW-2, Baird, 
March 15,2005). 

"Debt that is callable totals $559 million. The Elwood tolling contract is a total 
obligation to L A  of $454.4 million as of year-end 2004. We believe a settlement of this 
contract could cost L A  $100 to $200 million." (Id.) 

"The market value for the plants is believed to be significantly less than the book 
value" (Id.) 

"The ratings on Aquila reflect the company's onerous debt burden, nonregulated 
legacy operations, and marginal, albeit improving, liquidity." (Schedule JRW- 10, 
Standard and Poor's, March 14, 2005.) 

" . . . Aquila is likely to face moderate liquidity pressure-and may not have 
sufficient cash on hand to meet maintenance capex and its debt obligations (and other 
liabilities), barring further asset sales or restructuring activities." (Schedule JRW-8, 
UBS, March 8,2005). 

Q. THERE IS NO REASON TO BELIEVE THAT THESE ANALYSTS HAD 

ACCESS TO INFORMATION THAT WAS NOT AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC? 

A. No, on the contrary. It appears that their analyses were based entirely on 

information that is publicly available. 



Q. DO YOU HAVE ANY FURTHER OPINIONS ON THE ISSUE OF 

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE FOR AQUILA? 

A. Yes. In the wake of the accounting scandals at Enron, WorldCom, and many other 

companies, as well as in light of the ongoing investigations into financial fraud by New 

York Attorney General Elliott Spitzer, the theme in financial reporting and disclosure these 

days is 'financial transparency.' Clearly, being open with regard to financial transactions, 

statements and disclosures is important in the capital markets today. And, in my opinion, 

this is especially important for companies like Aquila who have had a troubled past. 

Q. DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY? 

A. Yes 



VERIFICATION 
I -, 

STATEOF k4&2 ) 
COUNTY OF 1 SS: 

The undersigned, being of lawful age and upon oath duly sworn, states that he is a 

consultant for the Citizens' Utility Ratepayer Board; that he has read the fojegoing, knows the 

contents thereof; and that the statements co 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this aday of 

My Appointment Expires: /d/d zv(8 s' 



APPENDIX A 

EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND, RESEARCH, 
AND RELATED BUSINESS EXPERIENCE 

J. RANDALL WOOLRIDGE 

J. Randall Woolridge is a Professor of Finance and the Goldman, Sachs & Co. and Frank P. Smeal 
Endowed Faculty Fellow in Business Administration in the College of Business Administration of the 
Pennsylvania State University in University Park, PA. In addition, Professor Woolridge is Director of the 
Smeal College Trading Room and President and CEO of the Nittany Lion Fund, LLC. He is also a Vice 
President of the Columbia Group, a public utility consulting firm based in Georgetown, CT. 

Professor Woolridge received a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from the University of North 
Carolina, a Master of Business Administration degree from the Pennsylvania State University, and a Doctor of 
Philosophy degree in Business Administration (major area-finance, minor area-statistics) from the University of 
Iowa. At Iowa he received a Graduate Fellowship and was awarded membership in Beta Gamma Sigma, a 
national business honorary society. He has taught Finance courses at the University of Iowa, Cornell College, 
and the University of Pittsburgh, as well as the Pennsylvania State University. These courses include 
corporation finance, commercial and investment banking, and investments at the undergraduate, graduate, and 
executive MBA levels. 

Professor Woolridge's research has centered on the theoretical and empirical foundations of 
corporation finance and financial markets and institutions. He has published over 25 articles in the best 
academic and professional journals in the field, including the Journal of Finance, the Journal of Financial 
Economics, and the Harvard Business Review. His research has been cited extensively in the business press. 
His work has been featured in the New York Times, Forbes, Fortune, The Economist, Financial World, 
Barron's, Wall Street Journal, Business Week, Washington Post, Investors' Business Daily, Worth Magazine, 
USA Today, and other publications. In addition, Dr. Woolridge has appeared as a guest on CNN's Money 
Line and CNBC's Morning Call and Business Today. 

The second edition of Professor Woolridge's popular stock valuation book, The StreetSmart Guide 
to Valuing a Stock (McGraw-Hill, 2003), was recently released. He has also co-authored Spinofs and 
Equity Carve-Outs: Achieving Faster Growth and Better Performance (Financial Executives Research 
Foundation, 1999) as well as a new textbook entitled Modern Corporate Finance, Capital Markets, and 
Valuation (Kendall Hunt, 2003). Dr. Woolridge is a founder and a managing director of www.valuenm.ne,t 
- a stock valuation website. 

Professor Woolridge has also consulted with and prepared research reports for major corporations, 
financial institutions, and investment banking firms, and government agencies. In addition, he has directed and 
participated in over 500 university- and company- sponsored professional development programs for 
executives in 25 countries in North and South America, Europe, Asia, and Africa. 

Dr. Woolridge has prepared testimony and/or provided consultation services in the following cases: 

Pennsylvania: Dr. Woolridge has prepared testimony on behalf of the Pennsylvania Office of Consumer 



Advocate in the following cases before the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission: 
Bell Telephone Company (R-811819), Peoples Natural Gas Company (R-832315), Pennsylvania Power 
Company (R-832409), Western Pennsylvania Water Company (R-832381), Pennsylvania Power Company 
(R-842740), Pennsylvania Gas and Water Company (R-850178), Metropolitan Edison Company (R-860384), 
Pennsylvania Electric Company (R-860413), North Penn Gas Company (R-860535), Philadelphia Electric 
Company (R-870629), Western Pennsylvania Water Company (R-870825), York Water Company (R- 
870749), Pennsylvania- American Water Company (R-8809 l6), Equitable Gas Company (R-88097 1 ), the 
Bloomsburg Water Co. (R-891494), Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, Inc. (R-891468), Pennsylvania-American 
Water Company (R-90562), Breezewood Telephone Company (R-901666), York Water Company (R- 
901813), Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, Inc. (R-901873), National Fuel Gas Distribution Company (R- 
9119 12), Pennsylvania-American Water Company (R-9 11909), Borough of Media Water Fund (R-9 12 1 SO), 
UGI Utilities, Inc. - Electric Utility Division (R-922 I%), Dauphin Consolidated Water Supply Company -
General Waterworks of Pennsylvania, Inc, (R-932604), National Fuel Gas Distribution Company (R-932548), 
Commonwealth Telephone Company (I-920020), Conestoga Telephone and Telegraph Company (I-920015), 
Peoples Natural Gas Company (R-932866), Blue Mountain Consolidated Water Company (R-932873), 
National Fuel Gas Company (R-942991), UGI - Gas Division (R-953297), UGI - Electric Division (R- 
953534), Pennsylvania-American Water Company (R-973944), Pennsylvania-American Water Company (R- 
994638), Philadelphia Suburban Water Company (R-994868;R-994877;R-994878;R-9948790), Philadelphia 
Suburban Water Company (R-994868), Wellsboro Electric Company (R-00016356), Philadelphia Suburban 
Water Company (R-00016750), National Fuel Gas Distribution Company (R-00038168), Pennsylvania- 
American Water Company (R-00038304), York Water Company (R-00049165), Valley Energy Company (R- 
00049345), Wellsboro Electric Company (R-00049313), and National Fuel Gas Distribution Corporation (R-
00049656). 

New Jersey: Dr. Woolridge prepared testimony for the New Jersey Department of the Public Advocate, 
Division of Rate Counsel: New Jersey-American Water Company (R-9 108 1399J), New Jersey-American 
Water Company (R-92090908J), and Environmental Disposal Corp (R-940703 19). 

Hawaii: Dr. Woolridge prepared testimony for the Hawaii Office of the Consumer Advocate: East Honolulu 
Community Services, Inc. (Docket No. 77 18). 

Delaware: Dr. Woolridge prepared testimony for the Delaware Division of Public Advocate: Artesian Water 
Company (R-00-649 j. 

Ohio: Dr. Woolridge prepared testimony for the Ohio Office of Consumers' Council: SBC Ohio (Case No. 
02- 1280-TP-UNC R-00-649). 

New York: Dr. Woolridge prepared testimony for the County of Nassau in New York State: Long Island 
Lighting Company (PSC Case No. 942354). 

Connecticut: Dr. Woolridge prepared testimony for the Office of Consumer Counsel in Connecticut: United 
Illuminating (Docket No. 96-03-29) and Yankee Gas Company (Docket No. 04-06-01). 

Kentucky: Dr. Woolridge prepared testimony for the Office of Attorney General in Kentucky: Kentucky- 
American Water Company (Case No. 2004-00103). 

Washington, D.C.: Dr. Woolridge prepared testimony for the Office of the People's Counsel in the District of 



Columbia: Potomac Electric Power Company (Formal Case No. 939). 

Washington: Dr. Woolridge consulted with trial staff of the Washington Utilities and Transportation 
Commission on the following cases: Puget Energy Corp. (Docket Nos. UE-011570 and UG-01157 1); and 
Avista Corporation (Docket No. UE-0115 14). 

Kansas: Dr. Woolridge prepared testimony on behalf of the Kansas Citizens' Utility Ratepayer Board 
Utilities in the following case: Western Resources Inc. (Docket No. 01-WSRE-949-GIE). 

FERC: Dr. Woolridge has prepared testimony on behalf of the Pennsylvania Office of Consumer Advocate in 
the following cases before the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission: National Fuel Gas Supply Corporation 
(RP-92-73-000) and Columbia Gulf Transmission Company (RP97-52-000). 

Vermont: Dr. Woolridge prepared testimony for the Department of Public Service in the Central Vermont 
Public Service Case (Docket No. 6988). 
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Aquila, lnc. (ILA) 
4Q04 Results on Target, Maintain Underperform Rating 
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Please refer to "Appendix - Important Disclosures." 

Action 
4Q04 EPS results were as expected and we believe ILA is on track to meet improved 
EPS in 2005. We reiterate our Underperform rating expecting ILKS utility operations will 
continue to post subpar results most likely pressuring ILA's stock price until additional 
rate relief is received in difficult regulatory environments. We do not expect additional 
rate relief until 2006. 

Summary 
lLA reported a 4Q04 EPS loss, excluding unusual items, of $0.10 compared to a 
4Q03 net loss of $0.18, our estimate of a loss of $0.12, and the First Call mean of a 
loss of $0.12. For 2004, the EPS loss, excluding unusual items, was $0.88 compared 
to a 2003 net loss of $0.88, our estimate of $0.90, and the First Call mean estimate 
of a loss of $0.75. 
We are maintaining our Underperform rating on ILA expecting below- average total 
returns until additional rate relief is received most likely in late 2006 or 2007. 
EBlT for the Domestic Utilities segment declined 19% in 4Q04 to $35.4 million and 
was down 9% to $159.1 million in 2004. Utility margins declined primarily reflecting 
higher operating costs for outside consulting, materials, labor, and other 
compensation costs, unfavorable weather, and higher fuel and purchased power 
costs. Partly offsetting the negatives was rate relief in 2004. 
Merchant Services continues to be a drag on earnings reflecting significant 
unhedged electric capacity. 2004 EBlT results were a loss of $253.2 million 
compared to a loss of $249.6 million in 2003. Management is continuing its pursuit to 
restructure the remaining toll agreement and disposition of assets. 
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Details 
ILA reported a 4Q04 EPS loss, excluding unusual items, of $0.10 compared to a 4Q03 
net loss of $0.18, our estimate of a loss of $0.12, and the First Call mean of a loss of 
$0.12. For 2004 the EPS loss, excluding unusual items, was $0.88 compared to a 2003 
net loss of $0.88, our estimate of $0.90, and the First Call mean estimate of a loss of 
$0.75. On a GAAP basis ILA reported EPS losses of $1 . I 3  and $0.21 for 2004 and 4Q04, 
respectively. 

4Q04Results (mil) Actual Year Ago Change Estimate Variance 

Revenues $500 $370 35.2% $467 7.1% 

Gross lncome 131 94 39.4% 196 (33.2%) 
Gross Margin 26% 25% 42% 
Operating Expense 129 84 53.1 % I83  (29.7%) 
Operating lncome 2 10 (76.0%) 13 (81.5%) 
Operating Margin 0% 3% 3% (82.8%) 
Pretax lncome (57) (75) 24.6% (50) 13.0% 
Net lncome (35) (36) 3.6% (40) (1 3.2%) 
EPS ($0.10) ($0.1 8) 46.7% ($0.12) (20.0%) 
Shares Outstanding 353 195 80.8% 325 8.5% 

2004 Results (mil) Actual Year Ago Change Estimate Variance 

Revenues $1,711 $1,674 2.2% $1,678 2.0% 
Gross lncome 497 550 (9.7%) 562 (I1.6%) 
Gross Margin 0 0 0 
Operating Expense 613 546 12.2% 627 (2.3%) 
Operating lncome (1 16) 4 NM (65) 78.2% 
Operating Margin -7% 0% -4% 74.7% 
Pretax lncome (354) (31 3) 13.2% (303) 17.0% 
Net lncome (220) (171) (28.7%) (195) 12.8% 
EPS ($0.88) ($0.88) (0.2%) ($0.90) (2.6%) 
Shares Outstanding 251 195 28.9% 21 7 15.9% 

Domestic Utilities 
EBlT for the Domestic Utilities segment in 4Q04 was $35.4 million, down 19% from the 
comparable period. In 2004, EBIT for the segment was $159.1 million, down 9% from 
$175.1 million in 2003. Electric utility margins were driven primarily by higher operating 
costs for outside consulting, materials, labor, and other compensation costs, unfavorable 
weather, and higher fuel and purchased power costs. Partly offsetting the negatives were 
higher rates due to several rate increases in 2004. Electric rate increases went into effect 
in Missouri in April and a Colorado increase went into effect in September. Natural gas 
results were driven by unfavorable weather and lower usage per customer, partly offset 
by higher rates in Nebraska and Missouri. The Nebraska rate increase had been in effect 
since January and the Missouri increase became effective in May. 

Two rate cases are pending in Kansas; a $6.2 million gas rate increase, that if approved, 
would go into effect in 3Q05 and an electric rate case where ILA was allowed to raise 
rates by $7.4 million; however, ILA has asked the commission to reconsider its order. ILA 
intends to file for an electric rate increase in Missouri in May. The company is considering 
filing for increases in gas rates in Minnesota and Iowa. 

Merchant Services 
Merchant Services continues to be a significant drag on earnings as it has significant 
unhedged capacity. 2004 EBlT results were a negative $253.2 million compared to a 
negative $249.6 million in 2003. Management is continuing its pursuit to restructure the 
Elwood toll agreement, winding-down of the trade book, and harvesting opportunities for 
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its investment in three peaking plants. 

EBlT by Business Segment 

EBlT by Business Segment 
Merchant Services 

Total EBlT ($304.1) ($188.3) ($115.8) ($56.5) ($59.3) 

Balance Sheet 
The total debt-to-capital ratio increased to 68% at the end of 2005, compared to 67% 
year-end 2004. ~he'current ratio increased to 1.8x, from 1 . 2 ~  a year prior. While working 
capital improved from $458 million at year-end 2003 to $694 million, cash decreased to 
$225 million. Book value per share was $4.50 as of year-end 2004, compared to $6.96 a 
year prior. 

Liquidity 
ILA anticipates using its $150 revolving secured credit facility, its $1 10 million unsecured 
revolving credit facility and its cash on hand to meet its peak winter working capital 
requirements. CAPEX requirements at the domestic utilities are expected to be $224 
million in 2005 and $179 million in 2006. 

Collateral 
The table below outlines the company's collateral position as of year-end 2004. As the 
trading positions settle, the level of collateral required decreases (assuming no movement 
in commodity prices). ILA has a target range of $175 to $200 million in collateral at 
1213 1105. 

(in millions) 1 213 112004 
Trading Positions $ 125.3 
Utility cash collateral 164.6 
Elwood Tolling contract 37.9 
Insurance and other 25.3 

$ 353.1 

Investment Thesis 
We rate ILA Underperform with a Speculative Risk rating. Despite ILA's aggressive, and 
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Risk & Caveats 


Aquila, Inc. 

we expect successful, efforts to improve financial fundamentals, we see little reason for 
investors to hold ILA shares at this price. As stock price movements demonstrate, ILA's 
stock is extremely sensitive to rumors, speculation and the like. 

4Q04 EPS was slightly better than expected despite mild weather, a positive. We expect 
it could be six quarters or more until ILA posts net income instead of a loss primarily due 
to continued underperformance of utility operations reflecting the under-recovery of 
costs. Given ILA's key focus is on improving liquidity and its balance sheet strength, 
predicting ILA's near-term EPS levels is difficult at best as the company continues to 
make progress on reducing business and financial risks and improving the long-term 
outlook for earnings. 

The key positive in the past several months: ILA established 2005 earnings guidance 
(EBT loss of $85 to $1 10 million) signaling we are getting closer to more predictable EPS 
performance. The key negative: ILA expects utility margins for the next several years to 
remain sub-par. Additional rate relief is needed; therefore, regulatory risks remain high 
and the lag time to get recovery could be almost two years. 

Despite the positives associated with the resolution of several long-term trading 
obligations, we expect ILA's stock will continue to trade at or below the current level well 
into 2006 reflecting an expected loss from ILA's continuing operations. As a result, we 
expect below-average total returns for the next I 8  months and would swap out of ILA 
shares. 

If ILA is successful, we expect these efforts could eventually be reflected in ILA's 
common stock price. The rating agencies' non-investment-grade credit rating, combined 
with the dividend elimination, is expected to keep ILA's stock trading at a substantial 
discount to implied asset values. 

We expect ILA's stock will trade in the range of $3 to $3.50 until the predictability of EPS 
and margins going forward improve and regulatory risk diminishes. Our target price 
reflects a 30% discount to the estimated value of ILA's regulated operations, or $5, 
based on a mixture of traded prices and appropriate PIE multiples. ILA's book value on 
12/31/04 was $4.50 with the majority of that book value attributable to ILA's regulated 
operations. 

The timing of and ultimate resolution of uncertainties associated with past merchant 
energy trading obligations is expected to keep ILA's stock price volatile. 

Our Speculative Risk rating reflects the company's significant long-term obligation that 
must be restructured to improve the company's long-term financial fundamentals and, 
therefore, return ILA's financial profile in line with its utility peers. While ILA's balance 
sheet restructuring efforts have improved liquidity, adverse regulatory or court rulings 
could significantly change our long-term financial outlook for ILA, including liquidity. 

The company's business is sensitive to fluctuations in the weather. A particularly warm 
winter or cool summer could adversely affect ILKS financial results. 

ILA's utility operations are subject to Federal, state and local legislative requirements. 
Changes in regulations or in the regulatory environment in general could impact ILKS 
earnings. 

Electric and natural gas commodity markets today are among the most volatile of any 
commodity traded. This volatility can significantly impact financial results. ILA's trading 
portfolios consist of contracts to buy and sell commodities that are settled by the delivery 
of the commodity or cash. If the values of these contracts change in a direction or 
manner not anticipated, material losses could be realized from ILA's trading portfolio. 
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Proceeds from any asset sales might be lower than book value, which would generate 
additional losses and may not adequately reduce debt levels to where the remaining 
asset base can generate cash flow to support the debt level. 

Company Description 
Based in Kansas City, Missouri, Aquila, Inc. operates electricity and natural gas 
distribution networks serving customers in seven U.S. states. Aquila also owns and 
operates independent power generation assets. The company was formerly known as 
~ t i l i ~ o r p  united but changed its name to Aquila in March 2002. 

"Appendix - Important Disclosures" 

I Created by BlueMatrix 

Robert W. Baird & Co. and/or its affiliates expect to receive or intend to seek investment banking related compensation from the company or 
companies mentioned in this report within the next three months. 

Baird prohibits analysts from owning stock in companies they cover. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON COMPANIES MENTIONED HEREIN IS AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST 

Copyright 2005 Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated 

Investment Ratings: Outperform (0) - Expected to outperform on a total return, risk-adjusted basis the broader US, equity market over the 
next 12 months. Neutral (N) - Expected to perform in line with the broader U.S. equity market over the next 12 months. Underperform (U) - 
Expected to underperform on a total return, risk-adjusted basis the broader US. equity market over the next 12 months. 

Risk Ratings: L - Lower Risk - Higher-quality companies for investors seeking capital appreciation or income with an emphasis on safety. 
Company characteristics may include: stable earnings, conservative balance sheets, and an established history of revenue and earnings. A - 
Average Risk - Growth situations for investors seeking capital appreciation with an emphasis on safety. Company characteristics may include: 
moderate volatility, modest balance-sheet leverage, and stable patterns of revenue and earnings. H - Higher Risk - Higher-growth situations 
appropriate for investors seeking capital appreciation with the acceptance of risk. Company characteristics may include: higher balance-sheet 
leverage, dynamic business environments, and higher levels of earnings and price volatility. S - Speculative Risk - High-growth situations 
appropriate only for investors willing to accept a high degree of volatility and risk. Company characteristics may include: unpredictable earnings, 
small capitalization, aggressive growth strategies, rapidly changing market dynamics, high leverage, extreme price volatility and unknown 
competitive challenges. 
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Distribution of Investment Ratings: As of February 28, 2005, Baird U.S. Equity Research covered 426 companies, with 49% rated Outperform, 
49% rated Neutral and 2% rated Underperform. Within these rating categories, 15% of Outperform-rated and 9% of Neutral-rated companies 
have compensated Baird for investment banking services in the past 12 months and/or Baird managed or co-managed a public offering of 
securities for these companies in the past 12 months. 

Analyst Compensation: Analyst compensation is based on: 1) The correlation between the analyst's recommendations and stock price 
performance; 2) Ratings and direct feedback from our investing clients, our sales force and from independent rating services; and 3 )  The 
analyst's productivity, including the quality of the analyst's research and the analyst's contribution to the growth and development of our overall 
research effort. 

Baird's Research Oversight Committee, comprised of representatives from our Private Client, Institutional, Legal & Compliance, and Research 
departments, is responsible for establishing these compensation guidelines and for reviewing and approving senior analyst compensation. 
Analyst contribution to our investment banking business is not a factor in determining analyst compensation. 

Analyst Certification: The senior research analyst(s) certifies that the views expressed in this research report andlor financial model accurately 
reflect such senior analyst's personal views about the subject securities or issuers and that no part of his or her compensation was, is, or will be 
directly or indirectly related to the specific recommendations or views contained in the research report. 

This is not a complete analysis of every material fact regarding any company, industry or security. The opinions expressed here reflect our 
judgment at this date and are subject to change. The information has been obtained from sources we consider to be reliable, but we cannot 
guarantee the accuracy. The Dow Jones Industrial Average, S&P 500, S&P 400 and Russell 2000 are unmanaged common stock indices used 
to measure and report performance of various sectors of the stock market; direct investment in indices is not available. 

A complete listing of all companies covered by Baird U.S. Equity Research and applicable research disclosures can be accessed at 
http:/lwww.nivbaird.com/researchdisclosure/.You can also call 1-800-792-2473 or write: Robert W. Baird & Co., Equity Research, 24th Floor, 777 
E. Wisconsin Avenue, Milwaukee, WI 53202. 

UK disclosure requirements for the purpose of distributing this research into the UK and other countries for which Robert W Baird 
Limited holds an ISD passport. 

This report is for distribution into the United Kingdom only to persons who fall within Article 19 or Article 49(2) of the Financial Services and 
Markets Act 2000 (financial promotion) order 2001 being persons who are investment professionals and may not be distributed to private clients. 
Issued in the United Kingdom by Robert W Baird Limited, which has offices at Mint House 77 Mansell Street, London, E l  8AF, and is a company 
authorized and regulated by the Financial Services Authority and a member of the London Stock Exchange. For the purposes of the Financial 
Services Authority requirements, this investment research report is classified as objective in relation to Conflicts of lnterest management. Please 
refer to http://www.rwbaird.comIeurope/ for a summary of Robert W Baird Limited's Conflicts of Interest Policy and Procedures. 

Ask the analyst a question Click here to unsubscribe 
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Aquila, Inc. (ILA) 
Puts Select Regulated Assets on the Block, Upgrade to 
Neutral Rating 
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Please refer to "Appendix - Important Disclosures." 
David E. Parker 
dparker@rwbaird.com Action 
81 3.274.7620 With announcement that select regulated assets are on block, we expect ILA's stock 
Aaron Em Vaughn, CFA, CPA price will trade in $3.50 to $4 range as investors focus on asset values rather than EPS 
avaughn@rwbaird.com weakness. As a result, we are raising our rating to Neutral, Higher Risk. However, we 
414.298.1743 see little upside from the current price range given EPS performance post assets sales 

and debt reduction most likely will not support a stock price over $5. 

Summary 
ILA announced it will selectively divest regulated utility assets to raise funds to further 
strengthen the company's balance sheet. 
This announcement underscores ILA's remaining issue -- too much debt for its 
remaining asset base. While asset sales can accelerate debt pay-down, the cost is a 
loss in long-term EPS power and as a result, we see limited price appreciation 
potential from ILKS current stock price unless the company receives robust sales 
prices. 
ILA expects asset sales agreements in August or September; the regulatory approval 
process could take from I2 to 18 months, depending on the state. 
After the divestiture process is complete, ILA expects annual EBlT growth of 3% to 
5%. 
The utilities under consideration for divestiture with a total net value of $875 million 
are Aquila's natural gas operations in Michigan, Minnesota, and Missouri; electric 
operations in Colorado and Kansas; and St. Joseph Light & Power in Missouri. 
Proceeds will be used to pay down debt. 
Assets that have been on the block for sometime include three merchant peaking 
plants and Everest Connections. The company also plans a settlement of its Elwood 
toll contracts. 
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Details 
Aquila currently operates utilities in seven states. The utilities under consideration for 
divestiture are Aquila's natural gas operations in Michigan, Minnesota, and Missouri; 
electric operations in Colorado and Kansas; and St. Joseph Light & Power in Missouri. 
The other utilities Aquila operates are electric properties in Missouri and natural gas 
properties in Iowa, Nebraska, Kansas and Colorado. The table below highlights the net 
plant and amount of customers per utility. 

Proceeds from the sale of the utilities and unregulated assets are expected to be used to 
pay down debt with any tax due from the asset sales most likely offset by the significant 
tax carryforwards. The chart on the next page highlights the near-term debt maturities 
that total $141.9 million. Debt that is callable totals $559 million. The Elwood tolling 
contract is a total obligation to ILA of $454.4 million as of year-end 2004. We believe a 
settlement of the contract could cost ILA $100 to $200 million. 

The company's senior unsecured credit rating is currently B- with S&P and Fitch and B2 
with Moody's. If the sales process is successful, ILA believes the company's credit 
metrics would fall into the BB range when the sales close in 2007. 
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Near-term Debt Maturities 

Assets 

St. Joseph Light & Power was acquired in late 2000 for $190 million. At the time of the 
merger, St. Joseph Light & Power was an electric and gas utility headquartered in St. 
Joseph, Missouri, approximately 50 miles north of Kansas City. As of September 30, 
2000, Light & Power had 12-month revenues of $103 million and assets of $258.3 million. 
Light & Power served 66,000 electric and gas customers in all or part of 10 counties in 
northwest Missouri. 

The book value for the three peaker plants is approximately $450 million. The market 
value for the plants is believed to be significantly less than the book value. 

Capital Expenditures 
The table below highlights ILA estimates capex requirements for 2005 through 2007. The 
next table highlights ILA's rate base investment plans over the next five years. Most of the 
expenditures for the increase in rate base would occur after the planned divestitures are 
completed, after 2007. 

Annual CAPEX projections 

Corporate & Other 
Total 

Rate Base Investment Over Next Five Years 

Environmental 

Other - Generation,T&D 130 
Total $ 650 
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Investment Thesis 
We rate ILA Neutral with a Higher Risk rating. Despite ILA's aggressive, and we expect 
successful, efforts to improve financial fundamentals, we expect limited price 
appreciation potential from ILA's current stock price and therefore expect ILA to provide 
average to below average total returns in the next several years. As stock price 
movements demonstrate, ILA's stock is extremely sensitive to rumors, speculation and 
the like. 

4Q04 EPS was slightly better than expected despite mild weather, a positive. We expect 
it could be six quarters or more until ILA posts net income instead of a loss primarily due 
to continued underperformance of utility operations reflecting the under-recovery of 
costs. Given ILA's key focus is on improving liquidity and its balance sheet strength, 
predicting ILA's near-term EPS levels is difficult at best as the company continues to 
make progress on reducing business and financial risks and improving the long-term 
outlook for earnings. 

ILA's decision to reduce additional debt through regulated asset sales is expected to 
stabilize ILA's stock price in the $3.50 to $4 range as investors focus on asset values 
rather than EPS weakness and as a result we raised our rating to Neutral, Higher Risk. 
However, we see little upside from the current price range given EPS performance post 
assets sales and debt reduction most likely will not support a stock price over $5. 

Our $4 target price reflects a 20% discount to the estimated value of ILA's regulated 
operations, or $5, based on a mixture of traded prices and appropriate PIE multiples. 
ILA's book value on 12/31/04 was $4.50 with the majority of that book value attributable 
to ILA's regulated operations. 

The key positive in the past several months: ILA established 2005 earnings guidance 
(EBT loss of $85 to $110 million) signaling we are getting closer to more predictable EPS 
performance. The key negative: ILA expects utility margins for the next several years to 
remain sub-par. Additional rate relief is needed; therefore, regulatory risks remain high 
and the lag time to get recovery could be almost two years. 

Risk & Caveats 
The timing of and ultimate resolution of uncertainties associated with past merchant 
energy trading obligations is expected to keep ILA's stock price volatile. 

The company's business is sensitive to fluctuations in the weather. A particularly warm 
winter or cool summer could adversely affect ILA's financial results. 

ILA's utility operations are subject to Federal, state and local legislative requirements. 
Changes in regulations or in the regulatory environment in general could impact ILA's 
earnings. 

Electric and natural gas commodity markets today are among the most volatile of any 
commodity traded. This volatility can significantly impact financial results. ILA's trading 
portfolios consist of contracts to buy and sell commodities that are settled by the delivery 
of the commodity or cash. If the values of these contracts change in a direction or 
manner not anticipated, material losses could be realized from I LA'S trading portfolio. 

Proceeds from any asset sales might be lower than book value, which would generate 
additional losses and may not adequately reduce debt levels to where the remaining 
asset base can generate cash flow to support the debt level. 
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Company Description 
Based in Kansas City, Missouri, Aquila, Inc. operates electricity and natural gas 
distribution networks serving customers in seven U.S. states. Aquila also owns and 
operates independent power generation assets. The company was formerly known as 
UtiliCorp United but changed its name to Aquila in March 2002. 

*"The 24 Hour Policy is in effect until 8:00 am,Wednesday, March 16, 2005. ** 
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Copyright 2005 Robert W. Baird 8 Co. Incorporated 

Investment Ratings: Outperform (0 )  - Expected to outperform on a total return, risk-adjusted basis the broader U.S. equity market over the 
next 12 months. Neutral (N) - Expected to perform in line with the broader U.S. equity market over the next 12 months. Underperform (U) -
Expected to underperform on a total return, risk-adjusted basis the broader U.S. equity market over the next 12 months. 

Risk Ratings: L - Lower Risk - Higher-quality companies for investors seeking capital appreciation or income with an emphasis on safety. 
Company characteristics may include: stable earnings, conservative balance sheets, and an established history of revenue and earnings. A -
Average Risk - Growth situations for investors seeking capital appreciation with an emphasis on safety. Company characteristics may include: 
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appropriate for investors seeking capital appreciation with the acceptance of risk. Company characteristics may include: higher balance-sheet 
leverage, dynamic business environments, and higher levels of earnings and price volatility. S - Speculative Risk - High-growth situations 
appropriate only for investors willing to accept a high degree of volatility and risk. Company characteristics may include: unpredictable earnings, 
small capitalization, aggressive growth strategies, rapidly changing market dynamics, high leverage, extreme price volatility and unknown 
competitive challenges. 
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Distribution of Investment Ratings: As of February 28, 2005, Baird US. Equity Research covered 426 companies, with 49% rated Outperform, 
49% rated Neutral and 2% rated Underperform. Within these rating categories, 15% of Outperform-rated and 9% of Neutral-rated companies 
have compensated Baird for investment banking services in the past 12 months and/or Baird managed or co-managed a public offering of 
securities for these companies in the past 12 months. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

Strategic and Financial Repositioning Overview 

Overview 

Our repositioning plan is based on improving operational results of our integrated electric and gas utility operations and 
strengthening our credit profile. The key elements of our plan are to: 

Maintain synergies of an integrated, multi-state utility. 

Significantly reduce our debt levels. 

Continue to improve operational efficiency and lower earnings variability. 

Gain access to the capital markets on improved terms, allowing the company to more cost-effectively fund investments 
in its rate base to meet customer needs. 

Actively work with regulators and legislators to address rate and fuel cost issues. 

Selectively divest regulated utility assets. 

Efficiently divest of our interest in remaining three Merchant peaking facilities and Everest Connections and exit our 
Elwood tolling obligation. 

This repositioning plan was developed to focus on building and maintaining the generation, transmission and 
distribution infrastructure necessary to provide our utility customers with safe and reliable service, while increasing the 
returns on invested capital in jurisdictions that lag behind those of our peers. We intend to focus on improving our 
returns through future rate activities and our recently initiated six sigma process improvement program, which we 
believe will bring our returns closer to those of our peers by the end of 2007. 

Asset Divestures and Strengthen Credit Profile 

With a stronger credit profile we will have the opportunity to invest in power generation, transmission and 
distribution capacity, as well as undertake environmental upgrades over the next decade. These normal course 
investments will not only improve the reliability and quality of our utility service, but also provides a platform for 
additional growth in our earnings and enhanced shareholder value. 

Following an extensive review and discussion with outside advisors on our stand-alone regulated utility strategy, 
we have retained investment banking advisors to conduct a competitive sale process for certain regulated utility assets. 
Due to regulatory and price uncertainties associated with the sale of regulated assets, we intend to concurrently conduct 
a competitive bidding process for utility assets having an aggregate net plant book value of approximately $874 million. 
The utilities that will be included in the competitive bidding process are our gas operations in Michigan, Minnesota and 
Missouri and our electric operations in Kansas, Colorado and our St. Joseph, Missouri service territory. At the 
conclusion of this process, we expect to enter into one or more definitive sale agreements to sell a subset of the offered 
properties. We will not determine which assets to sell until the conclusion of the competitive bidding process. Among 
other considerations, our decision will be based on the comparison of the value of the offers versus the value we can 
build by continuing to own and operate these assets, execution risk through the regulatory approval process, and the 
opportunity to support the growth of our remaining operations. 

We expect to use the proceeds from the sale of regulated utility assets to retire debt and other liabilities. We 
currently have more than $700 million of debt obligations that are, or are expected to be callable at par or at a 
reasonable fixed contractual fee. Having the ability to repurchase debt securities at fixed prices allows us to deploy the 
proceeds from utility asset divestures efficiently in order to reduce debt and improve our credit profile. 



We will also be focused on the divesture of our non-regulated assets and contractual requirements. This includes 
the continued analysis of the timing of our divesture of the remaining three peaking facilities and Everest Connections. 
Additionally, we will continue to pursue the exit of our Elwood tolling contract commitments. The proceeds from the 
sale of the peaking facilities and Everest Connections will be applied towards the exit of our Elwood tolling contract or 
to retire debt. 

Historical Review of Repositioning Efforts 

In response to significant changes in the energy industry during the past few years, we undertook a strategic 
review of our business in the second quarter of 2002 and announced a change in our strategic direction. Our revised 
strategy features a concentrated focus on our domestic utility operations, which preceded our diversification into 
merchant and international arenas in the 1990s. 

As part of this repositioning, we took the following actions in 2002: 

Began the wind-down of our Merchant Services trading portfolio in North America and Europe; 

Sold our natural gas storage facilities in both North America and the United Kingdom; 

Sold substantially all of our merchant loan portfolio; 

Sold our gas gathering and processing business located primarily in Texas and Oklahoma; 

Reduced our investment in Quanta Services, Inc. (which builds and maintains networks that carry energy and 
telecommunications) from 38% to 10.2%; 

Sold our equity investment in regulated utility operations in New Zealand; and 

Eliminated our quarterly dividend. 

Separately, we restructured Domestic Utilities in 2002 to more closely align it with its regulatory service areas. 
Due to our ongoing restructuring efforts since March 2002, we reduced staff by approximately 1,800 employees, 
including those transferred with the sale of various businesses. Of these, 496 were Corporate or Domestic Utilities 
employees. 

In 2003, we continued to execute on our transition plan through the following actions: 

Sold our remaining 10.2% investment in  Quanta Services, Inc.; 

Sold our Australian investments; 

Signed an agreement to sell our United Kingdom utility investment, which we completed in January 2004; 

Entered into a $430 million three-year secured term loan; 

Terminated our capacity payment obligations under our Acadia tolling agreement; 

Signed agreements to sell our Canadian utility businesses, which we completed in the second quarter of 2004; 

Signed agreements to sell our equity investment in 13 independent power plants, which we completed in the first half 
of 2004; 

Pursued rare increases for certain of our gas and electric operations; and 

Continued the wind-down of our wholesale energy trading businesses in North America and Europe. 

In 2004, we continued to implement our restructuring plan through the following actions, among others: 



Sold our investment in a merchant power plant development project in the United Kingdom; 

Settled rate cases relating to our Missouri and Colorado electric and Missouri and Nebraska gas utility operations and 
pursued rate relief for our Kansas electric and gas utility operations; 

Terminated our capacity payment obligations under our Aries tolling agreement and exited our investment in the Aries 
merchant power plant; 

Received a distribution on our investment in the BAF Energy cogeneration project; 

Renewed our 364-day letter of credit facility; 

Sold a non-strategic natural gas system located in eastern Missouri; 

Terminated four long-term natural gas supply contracts; 

Issued 46.0 million shares of common stock and $345 million of mandatorily convertible senior notes, raising 
$446.6 million in net proceeds; 

Retired the $430 million three-year secured term loan due in April 2006; 

Entered into a $220 million five-year unsecured term loan and a $1 10 million five-year revolving credit facility; and 

Entered into a $150 million six-month revolving credit facility secured by the accounts receivable of our regulated 
operations. 

Proceeds from these asset sales were used to pay down debt, fund restructuring charges and support our continuing 
operations. 
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FINANCIAL REVIEW 

Three-Year Review-Domestic Utilities 

Domestic Utilities is made up of our electric and gas regulated utility businesses, which operate as 
Aquila in Colorado, Iowa, Kansas, Michigan, Minnesota, Missouri and Nebraska. 

Year Ended December 31, 

Dollars in millions 

Sales: 
Electricity-regulated 
Natural gas-regulated 
Natural gas-non-regulated 
Other-non-regulated 

Total sales 1,825.6 1,711.8 1,802.8 

Cost of sales: 
Electricity-regulated 
Natural gas-regulated 
Natural gas-non-regulated 
Other-non-regulated 

Total cost of sales 1,144.8 1,027.2 1,125.3 

Gross profit 680.8 684.6 677.5 

Operating expenses: 
Operating expense 
Restructuring charges 
Net loss (gain) on sale of assets and other charges 
Depreciation and amortization expense 

Total operating expenses 525.5 510.9 554.7 

Other income (expense): 
Other income 

Earnings before interest and taxes $ 159.1 $ 175.1 $ 125.8 

Electric sales and transportation volumes (GWh) 12,363 11,833 12,373 



Gas sales and transportation volumes (Mcf) 
Electric customers 
Gas customers 

2004 versus 2003 

Sales, Cost of Sales and Gross Profit 

Sales and cost of sales for the Domestic Utilities businesses increased $1 13.8 million and 
$117.6 million, respectively, resulting in a gross profit decrease of $3.8 million in 2004 compared to 2003. 
These changes were primarily due to the following factors: 

Regulated electric utility sales and cost of sales increased $61.8 million and $53.4 million, respectively, in 
2004 compared to 2003, for a net increase in gross profit of $8.4 million. Sales and gross profit increased 
by $36.4 million due to rate increases in Colorado effective in July 2003 and in Missouri effective in 
April 2004, plus $5.6 million of additional margin from an increase in customers. These were partially 
offset by a $25.7 million increase in cost of sales due to the higher cost of fuel and purchased power, net of 
offsetting derivative hedge positions in 2004 and 2003. Unfavorable weather also decreased gross profit by 
$6.1 million. In addition, 2003 electric cost of sales included $2.3 million of favorable adjustments 
resulting from the settlement of purchased power pricing disputes that did not recur in 2004. 

Sales and cost of sales for our regulated gas utilities increased $62.5 million and $70.2 million, respectively, 
in 2004 compared to 2003, for a net decrease in gross profit of $7.7 million. Sales and cost of sales 
increased due to an 18% increase in natural gas prices. However, because gas purchase costs for our gas 
utility operations are passed through to our customers, the change in gas prices did not have a 
corresponding impact on gross profit. Regulated gas margins decreased $1 1.4 million due to unfavorable 
weather and lower usage per customer in 2004 compared to 2003. Regulated gas margins in 2003 included 
a $1.9 million favorable change in reserved funds released upon conclusion of multi-year gas cost recovery 
filings that did not recur in 2004. The overall decline in gas margins due to volume and weather was 
partially offset by $6.6 million in rate increases in Nebraska and Missouri and $1.9 million of increased 
margins from customer growth. 

Non-regulated gas sales, cost of sales and gross profit decreased $7.5 million, $6.7 million and $.8 million, 
respectively, in 2004 compared to 2003, primarily as the result of the sale of certain non-regulated gas 
pipeline and gathering operations in August 2003. 

Non-regulated other sales decreased $3.0 million and cost of sales increased $.7 million for a net decrease 
in gross profit of $3.7 million, primarily as a result of a decrease in appliance service contracts and 
increased costs of servicing existing contracts. 

Operating Expense 

Operating expense increased $16.1 million in 2004 compared to 2003, as a result of a number of cost 
increases. The most significant of these was outside services and materials costs, which increased 
$6.1 million, and labor and other compensation costs, which increased $5.3 million due to additional 
customer service representatives, apprentice linemen, increased pension costs and compliance costs in 2004 
compared to 2003. 

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased $2.8 million in 2004 compared to 2003, primarily 
due to the adjustments to depreciation rates resulting from recent rate cases. 



mparable to similarly titled measures used by other entities. 
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Forward-Looking Information and Risk Factors 

This report contains forward-looking information. Forward-looking information involves risks and 
uncertainties, and certain important factors can cause actual results to differ materially from those 
anticipated. The forward-looking statements contained in this report include: 

We expect to complete construction of a 3 15-megawatt, natural gas-fired generation facility near 
Peculiar, Missouri this summer. Some important factors that could cause actual results to differ 
materially from those anticipated include: 

The construction of our South Harper Peaking Facility could be delayed by weather. 
The construction of our South Harper Peaking Facility could be delayed or barred by an adverse 

outcome of litigation pending against us. 
We expect our utility rates to be increased in certain states where we have utility operations. 

Some important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated 
include: 

Regulatory commissions may refuse to approve some or all of the utility rate increases we have 
requested or may request. 

The timing of utility rate increases approved by regulatory commissions is often beyond our 
control and, until final approval is received, our earnings will continue to be impacted. 
l We anticipate significant additional capital expenditures in order to satisfy our long-term power 
generation and transmission needs and comply with environmental rules and regulations. Some 
important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated include: 
*We may not receive the approvals required to participate in the planned construction of additional 
generating capacity at the Iatan facility near Weston, Missouri, or to complete the South Harper 
Peaking Facility. 
*Environmental rules and regulations could change such that we are not required to make 
anticipated capital expenditures for environmental compliance. 
.We may not receive shareholder approval to issue additional shares of our common stock, which 
may be required to fund part of our anticipated future capital expenditures. 
*We believe that the anticipated capital costs of environmental compliance will be allowed for 
recovery in future rate cases. Some important factors that could cause actual results to differ 
materially from those anticipated include: 
*Regulatory commissions may refuse to allow us to recover in rates part or all of the capital costs 
related to environmental compliance. 
Changes in applicable law or regulation may prohibit us from recovering in rates part or all of the 
capital costs related to environmental compliance. 
*We intend to execute our long-term strategic plan, including the sale of certain regulated utility 
assets and our interests in three Merchant peaking facilities and Everest Connections, as well as 
the termination of the Elwood tolling contract, which we expect to help bring our returns closer to 
those of our peers by the end of 2007. Some important factors that could cause actual results to 
differ materially from those anticipated include: 
*We may receive bids for assets at prices that are inadequate or insufficient for accomplishing our 
targeted goals. 
*Regulatory commissions may not approve some or all of the contemplated divestitures. 
*We may not be able to retire indebtedness and our other long-term obligations on reasonable 
terms with the proceeds raised by additional asset sales. 
*We may not be able to improve returns on our Domestic Utilities business if our business process 
improvement initiative does not create significant savings over the next three years or, even if it 
does generate significant savings, we may not be allowed by regulatory commissions to retain 
such savings for the benefit of our shareholders. 
l The counterparty to the Elwood tolling contract may be unwilling to terminate or restructure this 
contract, or we may not find a third party willing to assume this obligation upon acceptable terms. 



We anticipate that our current revolving credit capacity and available cash will be sufficient to 
fund our winter needs and working capital requirements. Some important factors that could cause 
actual results to differ materially from those anticipated include: 
*Our access to revolving credit capacity depends on maintaining compliance with loan covenants. 
If we violate these covenants, we may lose revolving credit capacity and not have sufficient cash 
available for our winter needs. 
*Unanticipated increases in the price of naturaI gas that we purchase for our utility customers 
could exhaust our liquidity in the winter months. 
*Counterparties may default on their obligations to supply commodities or return collateral to us or 
to meet their obligations under commercial contracts, including those designed to hedge against 
movements in commodity prices. 
*We will attempt to improve operating cash flows by improving our operating efficiencies, 
increasing utility rates and cost recovery, retiring debt and long-term liabilities, and completing 
the wind-down of our Merchant Services business. Some important factors that could cause actual 
results to differ materially from those anticipated include: 

We may not recover a significant portion of the fuel and purchase power costs we incur to 
provide utility services in our largest jurisdiction, Missouri. 

We may not be able to improve returns on our Domestic Utilities business if our business process 
improvement initiative does not create significant savings over the next three years or, even if it 
does generate significant savings, we may not be allowed by regulatory commissions to retain 
such savings for the benefit of our shareholders. 

Counterparties may default on their obligations to supply commodities or return collateral to us 
or to meet their obligations under commercial contracts, including those designed to hedge against 
movements in commodity prices. 

The counterparty to the Elwood tolling contract may be unwilling to terminate or restructure this 
contract, or we may not find a third party willing to assume this obligation upon acceptable terms. 
*We believe that we have strong defenses to litigation pending against us. Some important factors 
that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated include: 

Judges and juries can be difficult to predict and may, in fact, rule against us. 
Our positions may be weakened by adverse developments in the law or the discovery of facts 

that hurt our cases. 
We do not expect that the annual limitations on net operating losses would cause any of our net 

operating losses to expire unutilized for purposes of reducing our taxes. Some important factors 
that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated include: 

Changes in the tax law could result in our tax net operating losses going unutilized. 
The failure to generate sufficient income could result in our tax net operating losses going 

unutilized. 
Aquila 2005 10-K Annual Report, March 15,2005, pp. 65-7. 
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Capital Expenditures 

Estimated Future Cash 
Actual Requirements 

In millions 
2004 2005 2006 2007 

Domestic Utilities 
Canadian utilities 
Everest Connections 
Corporate and Other 

Total capital expenditures $ 241.9 $ 237.7 $ 192.0 $ 200.7 
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Contractual Obligations 

In millions 
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter Total 

Long-term debt obligations (a)  $ 42.0 $ 89.3 $ 43.3 $ 2.6 $ 421.5 $ 1,428.2 $ 2,026.9 
Long-term gas contracts 22.1 23.4 23.9 2.0 - - 71.4 
Lease and maintenance 
obligations 29.3 24.1 22.3 23.6 22.5 94.7 216.5 
Elwood tolling contracts 37.3 37.3 37.3 37.4 37.4 267.7 454.4 
Merchant gas transportation 
obligations 9.2 8.5 5.4 5.4 5.4 23.3 57.2 
Regulated purchase obligations 330.9 280.3 249.3 205.4 178.1 582.6 1,826.6 

Total $ 470.8 $ 462.9 $ 381.5 $ 276.4 $ 664.9 $ 2,396.5 $ 4,653.0 

(a)  
Long-term debt obligations maturing in 2007 does not include the rzon-cash, mandatory 
conversion of $345.0 inillion of PIES to common stock on September 15, 2007. 
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Electric Utilities 

4Q04 Results: A Prelude to a New Plan? 

Losses Endure in 4Q04, Hampered by Weaker Utility Results 
Aquila realized a 4404 recurring loss of $0.14 per diluted share vs, our $0.1 I loss 
estimate. 4 4  utility EBIT declined 19% yly, reflecting rising fuel costs 
(inadequate recovery) and higher O&M. This was compounded by the ongoing 
drain at Merchant Services, including MTMlmargin losses related to its legacy 
book and settling the APEA-2 gas pre-pay. 

All Eyes on Pending Missouri Legislation .... 
We continue to track progress of the compromise bill (HB434BB179) through the 
MO House and Senate. If passed, this legislation would enable a recovery 
mechanism for filellpurchased power/environmental costs, which we believe could 
greatly enhance Aquila's economics. However, mgmt. clarified that fuel recovery 
would still occur within a regulatorv framework. 

V 

R ...And Another Conference Call Next Monday 
ILA has scheduled another conference call for March 14th (9:OO am) to discuss "a 
new repositioning plan". We expect other topics to include improving its weak 
credit profile, maximizing value from the core utilities, and progress on disposals. 

Valuation: Cutting Loss Estimates 
We have narrowed our 05/06 EPS loss estimates to reflect dilution. We will 
review our financial outlook and $3.50 price target (based on a 7 . 5 ~2006E 
EVIEBITDA for the utility) following next Monday's call and publication of ILA1s 
2004 10-K. 

Highlights (US$m) 12/03 12104 12105E 1 2106E 1 2107E 

Revenues 1,674 1 ,71 1 1,754 1,798 -

EBlT (1 64) (1 37) 109 199 -
Net income (UBS) (336) (293) (77) (22) -
EPS ( U S ,  US$) (0.96) (0.85) (0.20) (0.05) -
Net DPS (UBS, US$) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Profitability 8 Valuation 5-yr hist. av. 12104 12105E 12106E 12107E 

EBlT margin % 0.9 -8.0 6.2 11.1 

ROlC (EBIT) % 4.6 -5.2 5.4 10.0 

EVlEBlTDA x 12.8 21 00 12.8 9.1 

PE (UBS) x 16.6 -4.3 -20.3 -81.2 

Dividend yield % 4.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
Source Company accounls, Thomson Fmancral UBS esha tes  UBS adlusted EPS IS staled before goodwill-related charges and other adjustments for 
abnormal and economrc items at the analysls']udgemeni 
Vahahons based on an averaqe share prrce that year, (EJ based on a share price of US$4 06 on 07 Mar 2005 

Ronald J. Barone Kevin M. Anderson, CFA 

ANALYST CERTIFICATION AND REQUIRED DISCLOSURES BEGIN ON PAGE 2 
*Rating/return divergence; See page 3 
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Source: UBS 

I 

UBS does and seeks to do business with companies covered in its research reports. As a result, investors should be aware that the firm may 
have a conflict of interest that could affect the objectivity of this report. Investors should consider this report as only a single factor in making 
their investment decision. Customers of UBS in the United States can receive independent, third-party research on the company or 
companies covered in this report, at no cost to them, where such research is available. Customers can access this independent research at 
www.ubs.comlindependentresearch or may call +I  877-208-5700to request a copy of this research. 
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rn Aquila, lnc. 

Aquila, headquartered in Kansas City, MO, supplies regulated electric service in 
three Midwestern states and supplies natural gas utility service in seven states. It 
also maintains a limited, but shrinhng, number of investments in unregulated 
assets and continues to settle its legacy gas contracts and other trading positions. 

rn Statement of Risk 

Factors that could affect our earnings and cashflow estimates include cooler-
than-normal temperatures in the cooling season, warmer-than-normal 
temperatures in the heating season, unreasonable or unexpected regulatory 
decisions, and the uncertainty created by the deregulation of the electric and 
natural gas industries. 

Even with its recent securities offerings and new $1 10 inillion revolving credit 
facility designed for utility worlung capital needs, Aquila is likely to face 
moderate liquidity pressure - and may not have sufficient cash on hand to meet 
maintenance capex and its debt obligations (and other liabilities), barring further 
asset sales or restructuring activities. The company also remains subject to 
execution risk related to its strategic repositioning plan. 

Analyst Certification 

Each research analyst primarily responsible for the content of this research 
report, in whole or in part, certifies that with respect to each security or issuer 
that the analyst covered in this report: (1) all of the views expressed accurately 
reflect h s  or her personal views about those securities or issuers; and (2) no part 
of his or her compensation was, is, or will be, directly or indirectly, related to 
the specific recoininendations or views expressed by that research analyst in the 
research report. 
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Required Disclosures 

This report has been prepared by UBS Securities LLC, an affiliate of UE3S AG (UBS). 

UBS lnvestment Research: Global Equity Ratings Definitions and Allocations 

UBS rating Definition UBS rating Definition Rating category coverage1 1% servicesZ 
FSR is > 10% above FSR is > 10% above 

Buy I the MRA, higher Buy 2 the MRA, lower degree Buy 
degree of predictability of predictability 
FSR is between -1 0% FSR is between -10% 
and 10% of the MRA. Neutral and 10% of the MRA, Hold,Neutral 

Neutral higher degree of lower degree of 
predictability predictability 
FSR is > 10% below FSR is > 10% below 

Reduce 1 the MRA, higher Reduce2 theMRA,lowerdegree Sell 11% 29% 
degree of predictability of predictability 

1: Percentage of companies under coverage globally within this rating category. 
2: Percentage of companies within this rating category for which investment banking (IB) services were provided within the past 
12 months. 

Source: UBS;as of 31 December 2004. 

KEY DEFINITIONS 

Forecast Stock Return (FSR) is defined as expected percentage price appreciation plus gross dividend yield over the next 12 
months. 
Market Return Assumption (MRA) is defined as the one-year local market interest rate plus 5% (an approximation of the 
equity risk premium). 
Predictability Level The predictability level indicates an analyst's conviction in the FSR. A predictability level of ' I '  means that 
the analyst's estimate of FSR is in the middle of a narrower, or smaller, range of possibilities. A predictability level of '2' means 
that the analyst's estimate of FSR is in the middle of a broader, or larger, range of possibilities. 
Under Review (UR) Stocks may be flagged as UR by the analyst, indicating that the stock's price target and/or rating are 
subject to possible change in the near term, usually in response to an event that may affect the investment case or valuation. 
RatinglReturn Divergence (RRD) This qualifier is automatically appended to the rating when stock price movement has 
caused the prevailing rating to differ from that which would be assigned according to the rating system and will be removed 
when there is no longer a divergence, either through market movement or analyst intervention. 

EXCEPTIONS AND SPECIAL CASES 

US Closed-End Fund ratings and definitions are: Buy: Higher stability of principal and higher stability of dividends; Neutral: 
Potential loss of principal, stability of dividend; Reduce: High potential for loss of principal and dividend risk. 
UK and European lnvestment Fund ratings and definitions are: Buy: Positive on factors such as structure, management, 
performance record, discount; Neutral: Neutral on factors such as structure, management, performance record, discount; 
Reduce: Negative on factors such as structure, management, performance record, discount. 
Core Banding Exceptions (CBE): Exceptions to the standard +/-I O0Io bands may be granted by the lnvestment Review 
Committee (IRC). Factors considered by the IRC include the stock's volatility and the credit spread of the respective company's 
debt. As a result, stocks deemed to be very high or low risk may be subject to higher or lower bands as they relate to the rating. 
When such exceptions apply, they will be identified in the Companies Mentioned table in the relevant research piece. 

Companies mentioned 

Company Name Reuters Rating Price 
Aauila, l n ~ . ~ * ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ * ~ * ' ~ ~ ' ~  Neutral 2 IRRDI1LA.N US4.06 
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Price(s) as of 7 March 2005. Source: UBS. 

UBS AG, its affiliates or subsidiaries has acted as managerlco-manager in the underwriting or placement of securities of 
this company or one of its affiliates within the past 12 months. 

Within the past three years, UBS AG, its affiliates or subsidiaries has received compensation for investment banking 
services from this companylentity. 

This company is, or within the past 12 months has been, a client of UBS Securities LLC, and investment banking 
services are being, or have been, provided. 

This company is, or within the past 12 months has been, a client of UBS Securities LLC, and non-investment banking 
securities-related services are being, or have been, provided. 

Within the past 12 months, UBS Securities LLC has received compensation for products and services other than 
investment banking services from this company. 

UBS AG, its affiliates or subsidiaries beneficially owned 1% or more of a class of this company's common equity 
securities as of last month's end (or the prior month's end if this report is dated less than 10 days after the most recent 
month's end). 

UBS Securities LLC and/or UBS Capital Markets LP makes a market in the securities andlor ADRs of this company. 

Unless otherwise indicated, please refer to the Valuation and Risk sections within the body of this report. 

Aquila, Inc. (US$) 

-. . -Plice Target (US$) -Stock Price (US$) 

Source: UBS; as of 7 March 2005. 

Note: On October 13, 2003, UBS adopted new definition criteria for its rating system. (See 'UBS Investment Research: Global 
Equity Ratings Definitions and Allocations' table for details.) Between January 11 and October 12, 2003, the UBS ratings and 
their definitions were: Buy 1: Excess return potential > 15% smaller range around price target; Buy 2: Excess return potential > 
15%, larger range around price target; Neutral 1: Excess return potential between -15% and 15%, smaller range around price 
target; Neutral 2: Excess return potential between -1 5% and 15%, larger range around price target; Reduce 1 : Excess return 
potential < -15%, smaller range around price target; Reduce 2: Excess return potential c -15%, larger range around price target. 
Prior to January 11, 2003, the UBS ratings and definitions were: Strong Buy: Greater than 20% excess return potential, high 
degree of confidence; Buy: Positive excess return potential; Hold: Low excess return potential, low degree of confidence; 
Reduce: Negative excess return potential; Sell: Greater than 20% negative excess return potential, high degree of confidence. 
Under both ratings systems, excess return is defined as the difference between the FSR and the one-year local market interest 
rate. 

UBS 4 
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Global Disclaimer 
This report was produced by:UBS Securit~es LLC, an affiliate of UBS AG (UBS). 

Head Office: UBS Limited, 1 Finsbury Avenue, London. EC2M 2PP, UK Phone: +44-20-7567 8000 

Local Office: UBS Securit~es LLC, 1285Avenue of the Amer~cas, New York, NY 10019 Phone: +I-212-713 2000 

This report has been prepared by UBS AG or an affiliate thereof ("UBS"). In certain countries UBS AG is referred to as UBS SA. 

This report is for d~stribution only under such c~rcumstances as may be permitted by appl~cable law. It has no regard to the specific investment objectives, financial situation or particular needs 
of any specific recipient. It is published solely for ~nformat~onal purposes and is not to be construed as a solicitation or an offer to buy or sell any securities or related financial instruments. No 
representation or warranty, either express or implied, is provlded in relation to the accuracy, completeness or reliability of the information contained herein, except with respect to information 
concerning UBS AG, its subsidiar~es and affiliates, nor is ~t intended to be a complete statement or summary of the securities, markets or developments referred to in the report. The report 
should not be regarded by recipients as a substitute for the exerclse of thew own judgement. Any op~nions expressed in this report are subject to change wlthout not~ce and may differ or be 
contrary to opinions expressed by other business areas or groups of UBS as a result of using different assumptions and criteria. UBS is under no obl~gation to update or keep current the 
information contained herein. UBS, its directors, officers and employees (excluding the US brokerdealer unless specifically disclosed under required disclosures) or cl~ents may have or have 
had interests or long or short positions In the securities or other financial instruments referred to herein, and may at any time make purchases andlor sales in them as princcpal or agent. UBS 
(excludmg the US broker-dealer unless specifically disclosed under Required Disclosures) may act or have acted as market-maker in the securities or other financial instruments discussed in 
this report, and may have or have had a relat~onship w~ th  or may prowde or has prowded investment banking, capital markets andlor other financial services to the relevant companies. 
Employees of UBS may serve or have served as offtcers or directors of the relevant companies. UBS may rely on information barriers, such as "Chinese Walls," to control the flow of 
information contained in one or more areas within UBS, into other areas, units, groups or affil~ates of UBS. 

The securit~es descnbed herem may not be elig~ble for sale in all jurisd~cbons or to certaln categories of ~nvestors. Options, der~vative products and futures are not suilable for all investors, and 
trading in these instruments IS considered r~sky. Past performance is not necessarily ind~cative of future results. Foreign currency rates of exchange may adversely affect the value, price or 
income of any secunty or related ~nstrument mentioned In this report. For mvestment adwce, trade execution or other enquines, clients should contact thew local sales representative. Neither 
UBS nor any of tts affiliates, nor any of UBS' or any of its aff~liates, directors, employees or agents accepts any lrability for any loss or damage arising out of the use of all or any part of thls 
report. Additional information will be made available upon request. 

United Kingdom and rest of Europe: Except as otherwise specified herein, this material is communicated by UBS Limited, a subsidiary of UBS AG, to persons who are market counterpartles 
or mtermed~ate customers (as detailed In the FSA Rules) and is only available to such persons. The ~nformat~on contained herein does not apply to, and should not be relied upon by, private 
customers. Switzerland: Distributed by UBS AG to persons who are institutional mvestors only. Italy: Should persons receiving this research in Italy require additional information or wish lo 
effect transactions in the relevant securities, they should contact Giubergia UBS SIM SPA, an associate of UBS SA, in Milan. South Africa: UBS South Africa (Pty) Ltd (incorporating J.D. 
Anderson & Co.) is a member of the JSE Secur~t~esExchange SA. United States: Distributed to US persons by e~ther UBS Secuntres LLC or by UBS Financial Services Inc , subsidiaries of 
UBS AG; or by a group, subsidiary or affiliate of UBS AG that is not registered as a US broker-dealer (a "non-US affiliate"), to major US institut~onal investors only. UBS Securtties LLC or UBS 
Financial S e ~ c e s  Inc. accepts responsibility for the content of a report prepared by another non-US affiliate when distributed to US persons by UBS Securities LLC or UBS Financlal Services 
Inc. All transactions by a US person in the securities mentioned in this report must be effected through UBS Securities LLC or UBS Financial Services Inc., and not through a non-US affiliate. 
Canada: Distributed by UBS Securities Canada Inc., a subsidiary of UBS AG and a member of the principal Canadian stock exchanges 8 CIPF. A statement of its financial condition and a l~st  
of its directors and senior officers will be prowded upon request. Hong Kong: Distributed by UBS Securities Asia Limited. Singapore: Distributed by UBS Securities Singapore Pte. Ltd. Japan: 
Distributed by UBS Securibes Japan Ltd to institutional investors only. Australia: Distributed by UBS AG (Holder of Australian Financial Services Licence No. 231087) and UBS Securities 
Australia Ltd (Hdder of Australian Financlal Services L~cence No. 231098) only to "Wholesale" cl~ents as defined by s761G of the Corporations Act 2001. New Zealand: Distributed by UBS 
New Zealand Ltd. 

a2005  UBS. All r~ghts reserved. Th~s report may not be reproduced or redistr~buted, in whole or In part, w~thout the wr~tten permission of UBS and UBS accepts no liability whatsoever for the 
actions of th~rd parties in this respect 
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Schedule JRW-9 
First Call EPS Forecasts for Aquila 

(www.yahoo.~orn) 

E a r ~ ~ i ~ i g sEst 
Current Qtr 

M ar-05 

Next Qtr 

J u1-1-05 

Current Y e a r  

Deo.05 

Next Year 

De r>.O€i 

Avg , Estimate -0:l 2 -0.UB -0.30 -U:l 3 

No. of Analysts 1 1 3 3 

Low Estimate -a:1 2 -0.08 -0.4~1 -0.20 

High Estimate -0.12 -0.06 -0.20 -0.05 

Year Ago EPS -12.27 -0.31 -0.83 -0.30 

Revenue Est 
Current Qtr 

Ma r-05 

Next Q t r  

Ju1-1-05 

Current Y e a r  

Dee05 

Next  Year 

D e 1106 

Avg. Estimate N/A N/A 1 .750 1.808 

No, ofAnalysts 0 0 1 I 

Low Estimate NjA N/A 1.750 1 .808  

High Estimate N/A N/A 1,750 1.808 

Year Ago Sales 553.20M 335.30M N/A 1.758 

Sales Growth  
( y e a r k s t )  NjA 2.5% 

www.yahoo.com, March 30,2005 



Fitch Headline Page 1of 1 

13: Fitch: Aquila Repositioning Plan Has No Immediate Effect on 
RatingsIOutlook 

14 Mar 2005 1:27 PM (EST) 

Fitch Ratings-New York-March 14, 2005: The restructuring plan announcement today by Aquila, Inc. (Aquila) has 
no immediate effect on the company's '0-' senior unsecured rating and Stable Outlook, according to Fitch Ratings. 

While Fitch believes execution of the plan would have positive ratings implications, the timing of asset 
sales and debt reduction could extend beyond the 12-24 month timeframe implicit to a Rating 
Outlook. Positive rating actions depend on execution of purchase and sale agreements for utilities that 
have been identified as potential sales candidates and for the remaining nonregulated businesses 
(Elwood toll and peaking plants) at  prices sufficient to facilitate leverage reduction for the remaining 
utilities post-divestitures. I n  addition, passage of legislation permitting a fuel adjustment clause by 
the Missouri legislature followed by a constructive outcome for the Missouri rate case filing planned for 
May of 2005, as well as achievement of operational improvements, would have positive implications 
for credit quality. 

The repositioning plan has a reasonable chance of success in Fitch's view. The utilities identified as 
potential sales candidates have collective net plant of $874 million compared with Aquila's debt 
reduction goal of $700 million, which provides some negotiating flexibility regarding which utilities are 
sold or retained. The limited amount of debt maturing over the next several years provides Aquila 
with breathing room to execute on the plan. 

Contact: Sharon Bonelli +1-212-908-0581 or Ellen Lapson CFA 14-212-908-0504, New York. 

Media Relations: Brian Bertsch -1-1-212-908-0549, New York 

Copyright @ 2005 by Fitch, Inc., Fitch Ratings Ltd. and its subsidiaries. 
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Credit Ratings >>> Utilities 

Aquila Rating Affirmed; Outlook Negative 
Primary Credit Analyst(s): 

Jeanny Silva, New York (1) 212-438-1776; Publication date: 14-MarQ5,14:51:42 EST 
jeanny-silva@standardandpoors.com Reprinted from RatingsDirect 

NEW YORK (Standard & Poor's) March 14, 2005--Standard& Poor's Ratings 
Services said today that it affirmed its 'B-I corporate credit rating on 

Aquila Inc. The outlook remains negative. 


As of December 2004, the Kansas City, Mom-based company had about $ 2 , 4  
billion in total debt outatanding, including long-term gas contracts. 


"he rating affirmation follows Aquila's announcement today that it 

plans to sell certain xegulated utility assets to raise funds to reduce debt 

and help fund future investment in regulated capital projects," said Standard 

& Poor's credit analyst Jeanny Silva. 

"The negative outlook may be revised to stable once the executed sale 

agreements provide evidence that proceeds from planned divestitures wi31 

contribute to meaningful debt reduction and improved credit measures," said 

Ms. Silva. 


The ratings on Aquila reflect the company's onerous debt burden, 

nonregulated legacy operations, and marginal, albeit improving, liquidity. 

These risks outweigh the cash flow stability of the company's regulated 

utilities. 


The negative outlook on Aquila reflects concerns that credit measures 

could weaken if the company is unable to reduce cash losses at its 

nonregulated operations, utility cash flows decline, or the company is unable 

ta maintain adequate levels of liquidity. 


Apila is a diversified energy company with regulated and nonregulated 

businesses. 


Complete ratings information is available to subscribers of 

RatingsDirect, Standard & Poor's Web-based credit analysis system, at 
www.ratingsdirect.com. All ratings affected by this rating action can be found 

on Standard & Poor's public Web site at www.standardandpooxs.com; under Credit 
Ratings in the left navigation bar, select Find a Rating, then Credit Ratings 

Search. 


Regulatory Disclosures Privacy Notice Terms of Use Disclaimers Site Map Help 
Copyright (c) Standard & Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, lnc. All rights reserved. 



Schedule JRW-11 
Reuters Financial Analysis of Aquila 

REUTERS :iB 


LAST GWANGE Riisk Alert for 1LA.N 

3.7 0.04 (1.09%) 12:30 PM ET No Alert 

SECTOR: Lhllitres 1 INDUSTRY: Elec4ttc Utilities 

Valuation Ratios 
RAT10 COMPAR1S0N 

Valuation Ratios Company Industry Sector S&P 500 

P/E Ratio IJTM) NM 17.55 17.45 21.43 

P/E High - Last 5 Yrs. NA 29.60 28.44 42.31 

P/E Low - Last 5 Y rs. NA 10.01 10.62 15.75 

Beta 0.29 0.36 0.41 1.00 

Price to Sales (TM) 

Price to Book (MRQJ 

Price to Tangible Baak (MRQ) 

Price to Cash Flow (TTM) 

Price ta Free Cash Flow m M )  

OJo Owned Institutions 74.28 55.06 55.16 65.58 

. - .  

Source: www.investor.reuters.com,March 30,2005. 



Schedule JRW-11 
Reuters Financial Analysis of Aquila 

REUTERS :ib 
Management Effectiveness 

Management Effectiveness [%) Company Industy Sector S&P 500 
Return On Assets V M )  -5.51 2.93 3.17 7.40 

Return On Assets - 5 Yr. Avg. 

Return On Investment mM) 
Return On Investment - 5 Yr. Avg. 

Return On Equity WM) 
Return On Equity - 5 Yr. Avg. -22.70 11-47 11-27 18.79 

Learn abmd Management Eff~c41vene.l~ 

EfFiciency 
Efficiency Company Industry Sector S&P 500 
RevenueIErnploy ee V M )  536,028 968,507 998,267 738,892 
Net IncomeIEmployee F M )  NM 68,840 69,937 98,295 

Receivable Turnover (TTM) 3.82 8.42 8.59 10.18 
Inventory Turnover (TTM) 

Asset  Turnover mM) 
8.86 

0.27 

14.58 

0.39 

15.23 

0.42 

13.11 

0.96 

Source: www.investor.reuters.com,March 30,2005. 
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Reuters Financial Analysis of Aquila 

UTERS :@ 
Financial Strength 

Financial Strength Company Industry Sedor S&P500 
Quick Ratlo (MRQ) 0.55 0.55 1.20 
Current Ratio (MRQ) 0.96 0.96 1.69 
LT Debt to  Equity (MRQ) 2.34 2.11 0.63 
Total Debt to  Equity [MRQ) 2.55 2.32 0.79 
Interest Coverage V M )  5.34 4.94 11.87 

F Learn about Financial Cundition Ratirtios 

Profitability Ratios 
Profitability Ratios j%) Company Industry Sector 
Gross Margin V M )  29.04 34.92 34.91 
Gross Margin - 5 Yr. Avg. 32.87 32. I4 33.10 

EBlTD Margin VM) 27.52 26.72 
EBITD - 5 Yr. Avg. 27.68 27.33 

Operating Margin W M )  17.38 17.11 
Operating Margin - 5 Yr. Avg. 17.23 17.33 

Pre-Tax Margin V M )  10.40 10.31 
Pre-Tax Margin - 5 Yr. Avg. 11.25 1 1.70 

Net Profit Margin V M )  8.1 1 8.64 
Net Profit Margin - 5 Yr. Avg. 7.54 7.94 

Effective Tax Rate (TTM) 31.26 31.31 
Effective Tax Rate - 5 Yr. Avg. 35.01 34.41 

Source: www.investor.reuters.com, March 30,2005. 



AQUILA, INC. NYSE-ILA . !KJ!T 3 E53 !fTlo N M F ( T r a i ~ i n ~ : ~ ~ ~ )  Median: 14,O PIE RATIO 
RELATIVE N M F y:! 

TIMELINESS 3 . Raised 6/27\03 

SAFETY 5 Lowwed 11122102 

TECHNICAL 1 Raised 1\2/04 
BETA 1.15 (1.00 = Markel) 

High: 19.3 22.7 
Low: 14.8 18.1 
LEGENDS - 1.17 x Dividends sh 

dlvlded b lnteresr  ate . . . . Relat~ve &ice Strength 
3-for2 spht 3199 

Ann'l Total 
Price Gain Return 

1 I 

F M A M  J J A S O I A 

CAPITAL STRUCTURE as of 9130103 
Total Debt $2707.4 mill. Due i n  5 Yrs $12348 mill. 
LT Debt $2291.8 mill. LT Interest $217.1 mill. 

(Interest not earned.) 
Leases, Uncapitalized Annual rentals $47.4 mill. 

Pension Assets-12/02 $300.3 mill. Oblig. $358.2 
mill. 

Pfd Stock None 

Common Stock 195,166,982 shs. as of 10/29/03 
MARKET CAP: $700 million (Small Cap) 

ELECTRIC OPERATING 

X Chan e Retail Sales (KWH) 
~ v g .  in&.,. use j~q 
Avg. lndusl. Revs, per KWH (&) 
Capacity at Peak (Mw 
h&Lmd ,%rnmer hvt) 
Annual load Fact@ (lo 
% Chnge Custmeri lyPend) 

STATISTICS 
2000 2001 

-65.4 +22.6 
5307 5035 
4.45 4.18 

NA NA 
2113 2541 

NA NA 
+97.0 +5.5 

Red Charge Cov. [%) 152 191 NMF 
ANNUAL RATES Past Past Est'd '00-'02 
of change (per sh) 10 Yrs. 5 Yrs. to '06-'08 
Revenues 25.5% 26.0% -42.5% 
"Cash Flow" -2.5% -4.0% -18.5% 
Earnings -8.0% -17.5% NMF 
Dividends .5% -2.0% -700.0% 
Book Value 2.5% 2.5% -16.5% - 
Cal- 

endar - 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 - 
Cal- 

endar - 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 - 
Cal- 

endar - 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 

4) Diluted EPS. Excl. nonrecurring ains 
osses): '00, 3 0 ~ ;  '01.41 5 net; '02, (88.44) net; 
13, (71 5); ain (loss) on discontinued opera- 
Ons: '02, ($2.04); 03. 6 c  '00 EPS don't add 

11980 10441 9316 8640 
767.4 656.0 542,4 4 i l ,3  
522.8 367.4 322.0 312.8 
400 325 325 325 

EARNINGS PER SHARE A 

Mar.31 Jun.30 Sep.30 Dec.31 
.59 .31 SO S O  
.69 .71 .58 .05 
.32 d.06 d.79 d1.43 

d.33 d.16 d.36 d.15 
d.15 d.15 d.15 d.15 
QUARTERLY DIVIDENDS PAID FJ 

Mar.31 Jun.30 Sep.30 Dec.31 
3 0  .30 .30 .30 
.30 .30 ,30 3 0  
.30 .30 ,175 " -  

" "  -. -. .- 

26 0 
1 1 : 1 ? :  1 1 : 1 1 . 1 I / Target Price Range 

2006 1 2007 12008 

40377 
2377. 
1525 
1375 
Full 
Year 
1.91 
2.01 

d2.35 
d1.00 
d.60 
F~II  
Year 
1.20 
1.20 
.78 ." 

1 I I I 
BUSINESS: Aquila, tnc. (formerly UtiliCorp United) provides regu- rnercial, 28%; industrial, 15%; other, 15%. Generating sources, '02: 
lated & nonregulated electric generation and transportation/distribu- coal, 49%; oil & gas, 11%; purchased, 40%. '02 reported deprec. 
tion of electricity & gas. Began discontinuing energy trading and rates: electric, 4.0%; gas, 3.4%. Has 4,700 employees, 112,000 
marketing in '02. Electric & gas service areas incl. MO, KS, MN, IA, corn. stockholders. Chairman, Pres. & CEO: Richard C. Green, Jr. 
CO, NE, MI, & British Columbia. Customers: 438,000 electric, Inc.: DE. Address: 20 West Ninth St., P.Q. Box 13287, Kansas City, 
891,000 gas. Electric rev. breakdown, '02: residential, 42%; corn- MO 64199-3287. Tel.: 816-421-6600. Internet: www.aquila.com. 

Aquila has three asset sales pending. 
The company had little choice but to adopt 
a "back to basics" strategy after the power 
markets collapsed in 2002, leaving Aquila 
(which was a big player in energy market- 
ing and trading) with red ink and a heavy 
debt burden. Accordingly, the company ex- 
ited a s  much of the this business as it 
could (it is still saddled with some un- 
attractive contracts), began divesting non- 
utility assets, and cut operating and rnain- 
tenance expenses by more than $100 mil- 
lion. The sale of Aquila's Canadian utility 
operations will provide $600 million-$630 
million, the sale of its British utility busi- 
ness will raise $40 million-$45 million, 
and rhe sale of most of its independent 
power projects will bring in $300 million. 
Assuming that the deals close as expected 
(probably in the first quarter of 2004), this 
will enable the company to retire the $400 
minion of debt that  is due in the second 
half of 2004. Aquila plans to use the re- 
maining cash for additional debt reduction 
or for payments to exit the aforementioned 
energy-marketing contracts. But the sales 
weakened the company's earning power. 
Once the sales have closed, Aquila 

will be almost entirely a regulated 
electric and gas utility. The company 
has been pursuing rate relief, Last year, it 
received tariff hikes totaling $34.4 million 
in four states. A settlement for a rate 
boost of $6.2 million in Nebraska was 
awaiting commission approval a s  we went 
to press. In Missouri, Aquila seeks an elec- 
tric rate increase of $80.9 million and a 
gas tariff hike of $6.4 million. The commis- 
sion's staff has recommended an electric 
increase of just $9 million, however. Rate 
orders are due around mid-2004. 
Aquila posted a heavy loss in 2003, 
and another deficit is likely in 2004. 
The company hasn't changed the state- 
ment i t  made last April that  i t  expects to 
record a loss in 2003 and 2004. Even if the 
utility receives reasonable regulatory 
treatment in Missouri, Aquila's bottom 
line will likely be stuck in the red for a 
while due to high interest expense and its 
remaining exposure to energy marketing. 
This stock offers little appeal. Besides 
the ongoing losses, Aquila must find a way 
to retire or refinance over $500 million in 
debt that  comes due in 2006. 
Paul E. Debbas, CFA January 2, 2004 

- ,  
2004 Va ue Lme Pub ~ s h  n Inc All r~gntr reserved '~actua,  mater al k ootalned from s o m e s   elw wed ro be' lellaole and 1s provaed w~rhoJl vrarrvniles of any k nd 

THE P ~ ~ L I S ~ L H  IS  NO1 RE~PONS OLE FOR ANY tRRORS OR OMISSIONS H E W N   TI^ ubl tat~on 15 str ~ t l y  for suhscr bers am non cornrncrcfal nternal use h o  pan 
of I, may DC reproduce", resold stored or lransmlned ~n any pr nrcd elecuonlc or oher form, or s e t f o r  generarlng or mameLng any pr~ntw or ewlronlc publ~catlon servlce or ploducl 

due to rounding; '01 & '02 due to changes in 
shares outstanding. Next earnings report due 
mid-Mar. (B) Div'd suspended 11/02. (C) Incl. 
deferred charges. In '02: $2.98lsh. (D) In mil- 

lions, adj. for split. (E) Rate base: Fair value. 
Rate allowed on corn. eq, in MO in '98 (elec- 
tric): 10.75%; earned on avg. corn. eq., '02: 
NMF. Reaulatow Climate: Averaqe. 

Company's Financial Strength C 
Stock's Price Stability 25 
Price Growth Persistence 15 
Earninas Predictabilitv 10 



- - 

- - - - 

Trailing NMF 
( M e d i a n i d  

-AQUILA, INC, NY: 4.05 I ! ! ~ N M F  
IMELlNESS 3 Raised 6127103 27.0 Target Price Range  I 1 1 
SAFETY 5 Lowered11/22/02 

1.6 2007 2008 12009 

rECHNlCAL 2 Lowered 3/26/04 

-I3ETA 1.20 (1.00 = Market) 

2007-09 PROJECTIONS 
Ann'l Total 

Price Gain Return 
1iigh 6 (+SO% 11% 
-1o w  3 1-25%l, -7%. 
IInsider Decisions 

M J J A S O N D J  
I0Buy 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  

I I(3ptions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 --+%TOT. RETURNa04 1IoSdl 0 0 0 1  1 0 0 0 0
* 

IInstitutional Decisions I THIS VLARITH. I 
STOCK INDEX292003 392003 492003 ;::c 1 yr. 174.3 65.3::Et 

5 3 yr. -85.1 37.3traded 
- 5 vr. -78.7 83.6 - 2002 

21.22 21.44 21.23 20.80 24.45 24.93 22.64 12.27 
2.66 3.13 3.15 3.56 3.33 3.53 3.45 d.73 
1.29 1.30 1.35 1.43 .87 1.23 1.37 d2.35 
68  .95 .97 1.03 1.07 1.08 1.13 -.78 Nil I Div'd ~ec l 'd  per sh 1 Nil-

2.48 2.88 2.82 2.59 2.82 2.23 1.97 2.25 .90 ICap'l Spending per sh 1 1.00 
10.16 11.06 11.66 12.97 12.44 13.51 13.55 -8.30 

-
31.71 34.14 42.13 51.68 53.13 63.03 66.90 193.78 197.00 Common Shs Outst'g a 200.00 

9.2 9.9 9.8 11.4 20.8 16.2 13.9 15.2 
.76 .75 .73 .73 1.26 .96 .91 .78 

6.4%- 5.7% 7.4% 7.3% 6.3% 5.9% 5.4% 5.9% - Avg Ann'l Div'd Yield 
1CAPITAL STRUCTURE as of 9\31 03 1514.6 2377.1 1900 Revenues ($mill) 2100 
Total Debt $2707.4 milt. Due in 5 rs $1234.8 mill. 94.4 d379.7 d75.0 Net Profit ($mill) d35.0 
ILT Debt $2291.8 mill. LT lntere $217.1 mill. 34.3% 

-
39.3% NMF Income Tax Rate NMF 

i[Interest not earned.) 
Iieases, uncapitalized Annual rentals $47.4 mill. 1-
 - NMF AFUDC % to Net Profit NMF2.2% 

59.9% 60.0% Long-Term Debt Ratio 66.5% 
40.1%-
4005.9 
31 80.6 -

NMF 
NMF 
-NMF 

NMF 
NMF 

40.0% Common Equity Ratio 33.5% 
2895 Total Capital ($mill) 3075 
2970 Net Plant ($mill) 3300 
5% Return on Total Cap'l 2.0% 

NMF Return on Shr. Equity NMF 
NMF 1 Return on Com quit^ E 1 NMF 
NMF 1 Retained to Com Eq I NMF 
NMF IAll Div'ds to Net Prof I NMF 

mercial, 28%; industrial, 15%; other, 15%. Generating sources, '02: 
coal, 49%; oil & gas, 11%; purchased, 40%. '02 reported deprec. 
rates: electric, 4.0%; gas, 3.4%. Has 4,700 employees, 112,000 
corn, stockholders. Chairman, Pres. & CEO: Richard C. Green, Jr. 
Inc.: DE. Address: 20 West Ninth St., P.O. Box 13287, Kansas City, 
MO 64199-3287.Tel.: 816-421-6600.Internet: www.aquiIa.com. 

the settlement. Aquila has requested that 
new rates go into effect by April 15 th  but 
the commission has until early June to is- 
sue an  order. Still pending are a $6.4 mil- 
lion gas case in Missouri and an $ l l .4 mil- 
lion electric filing in Colorado. 
We expect Aquila's losses to decline 
gradually, but the company will still 
be in the red for a while. Rate relief, 
the effects of a cost-cutting program, and 
reduced energy-marketing losses should 
produce bottom-line improvement in 2004 
and 2005. But that  won't be enough to en- 
able the company to turn profitable. (Man- 
agement hasn't given any guidance except 
to say that i t  expects a loss in 2004.) One 
reason (besides high interest expense) for 
the red ink is that  many of the aforemen- 
tioned asset sales, while necessary to im- 
prove Aquila's liquidity, hurt its bottom 
line because the divested businesses were 
profitable. 
We continue to advise investors to 
avoid this stock. Still in question is 
whether the company will be able to retire 
or refinance over $500 million in debt that  
comes due in 2006. 
Paul E. Debbas, CFA April 2,2004 

IPension Assets-12102 $300.3 mill. Oblig. $358.2 
Imill. 

IPfd Stock None 

ICommon Stock 195,166,982shs, as of 10129103 
IMARKET CAP: $800 million (Small Cap) 

IELECTRIC OPERATING STATISTICS 
-- - - -- - . 

I1Chan e Retail Sales (KWH) +55.4 +22.6 
1hq.ln&L Use (MM 5307 5035 
Avq, Indt~slME,04 dWH (HI() 4.45 4.18 
ICajiacityalPeakjlGlw " NA NA 
IPeak Lmd. Summerhw) 21 13  2541 
Annual load Factor (10 NA NA 
% CIUKJ~ ~us~omersbend) t97.0 +5.5 

IFixed Cham Cov 1%) 152 191 

1 
+.7 

5314 
4.09 

NA 
2639 

NA 
11.6 

NMF 
ANNUAL RATES Past Past Est'd '00-'02 
of change (per sh) 10 Yrs. 5 Yrs. to '07.'09 
Revenues 25.5% 26.0% -35.0% 
"Cash Flow" -2.5% -4.0% -16.0% 
Earn~ngs -8.0% -17.5% NMF 
Dividends 3% -2.0% -100.0% 
Book Value 2.5% 2.5% -15.0% 

Cal- QUARTERLY REVENUES ($ mill.) FUII*Mar.31 Jun.30 Sep.30 Dec.31 Year 
2001 11980 10441 9316 8640 40377 
2002 767.4 656.0 542.4 411.3 2377.1 

10.1% 
1.9% 
82% 

BUSINESS: Aquila, Inc. (formerly UtiliCorp United) provides regu- 
lated & nonregulated electric generation and transportation/distribu-
tion of electricity & gas. Began discontinuing energy trading and 
marketing in '02. Electric &gas service areas incl. MO, KS, MN, IA, 
CO, NE, MI, & British Columbia. Customers: 438,000 electric, 
891,000 gas. Electric rev. breakdown, '02: residential, 42%; corn-

Aquila has almost completed its asset 
sales. Ever since the power markets col- 
lapsed two years ago, thereby weakening 
the company considerably, Aquila has 
been divesting assets and exiting as much 
of the energy-marketing business as pos-
sible. In the first quarter of 2004, sales of 
the company's British utility and the bulk 
of its domestic independent power projects 
brought in $300 million. The sale of 
Aquila's Canadian utilities should raise 
over $600 million. Some of the proceeds 
(along with cash on hand) will be used to 
retire $400 million of debt that comes due 
in the second half of 2004. The rest could 
be used for additional debt reduction or to 
buy out some unattractive power-
marketing agreements and gas prepay 

2003 522.8 367.4 322.0 461.8 
2004 575 375 375 475 
2005- 600 400 400 500 

Cal- EARNINGS PER SHARE A 

endar-Mar.31 Jun.30 Sep.30 Dec.31 
2001 .69 .71 5 8  .05 
2002 .32 d.06 d.79 d1.43 
2003 d.33 d.21 d.36 d.19 
2004 d.20 d.15 d.15 d.15 
- d.10 d.10 d.70 d.102005 

Cal- QUARTERLY DIVIDENDS PAID 8 
endar-
2000 
2001 
2002 .-- .-- . . . -
2003 .- - - - -
2004 

I 
.- - -

0A) D~lutedEPS. Excl. nonrecurring ains 

1674.0 
1800 
1900 

Full 
Year 
2.01 

d2.35 
d1.09 contracts that  are a legacy of Aquila's par- 
d.65 ticipationinenergymarketing. 
d.40 I The utility has reached a settlement 

in its e l e k i c  rate case in Missouri. FIIII I 
Aquila had been seeking an electric tariff 
hike of $80.9 million.'The Missouri com-
mission's staff has agreed to a $37.55 mil- 
lion boost. That's far better than the staff's 
initial recommendation of a $9 million in-

-:.-I crease. The commission must still approve 
I 

I 
I 

I 
add due to changes in shares outstanding. (E)Rate base: Fair value. Rate allowed on Company's Financial Strength CI I

1 
Next earninus remn due mid-Mav 11Diud corn. e a  in MO in 9 8  ielectrici: 10.75%: Stock's Price Stabilitv 25 
suspended i l i0i .  (C) Incl. deferred bhrges. In earned bn avg. corn. eb .  '02: ~ M F .~ e g h a t o r ~Price Growth persistence 15 
'02: S2.98,sh. (D) In millions, adj. for split. Climate: Average. Earninas Predictabilitv 10I


losses): '00, 3 0 ~ ;  net; '02. 1i8.44) net:'01. 4 1 ~  
!3, (710: ain (loss) on discontinued opira- 
tions: 02. (i2.04); '03. 6 6  '01 & '02 EPS don't 
0 2004, Value Line Publish~n Inc All rights reserved. Factual material is obtained from sources believed to be reliable and is provided without warranties of any kind. 
THE PUBLISHER IS NOT RE$ONSIBLE FOR ANY ERRORS OR OMlSS10NS HEREIN. This ublicalion is strictly for subscriber's own "on-commercial internal use. No part 
of ir may be reproduced, resold, stored or transmitted in any printed, electronic or other form, or usJfor  generaling or maeeling any printed o i  electronic publicahon, service or product 



AQUILA, INC. NYSE-lrn 
RECENT 
PRICE - 

0 I 

ti1 

1 

- 
la, Inc. (formed 

Target Price Range / 1 2007 1 2008 12009 

Ann'l Total 
Price Gain Return 

es recession w w  
Insider Dec is ions  F 

L 

- 

- 
E 2004 
9.20 
d. 05 
d.80 

Nil - 
.85 
6.05 - 

196.00 

STOCK INDEX 
1 yr. 44.8 24.1 
3 yr. -87.6 18.7 
5 vr. -80.4 48.2 

A S O N D  J F M A  

10.50 
.75 
d.20 
Nil - 
1.00 
5.00 - 

200.00 - 
NMF 
NMF 

Nil 

to Buv 

2005 QVALUE LINE PUB., INC. 
9.65 Revenues per sh 
.30 "Cash Flow1' per sh 
d.50 Earnings per sh A 

Nil Div'd Decl'd per sh 
.85 Cap'l Spending per sh 
5.60 Book Value per sh c 

197,00 Common Shs Outst'g 
,es are Avg Ann'l PIE Ratio 
h e  Relative PIE Ratio 
tes Avg Ann'l Div'd Yield 

Bold fk 
Valu 
estlr 

CAPITAL STRUCTURE as of 3131104 
Total Debt $2629.0 mill. Due in 5 Yrs $1077.0 mill. 
LT Debt $2207.2 mill. LT Interest $213.0 mill. 

BUSINESS: Ac 
lated & nonrec)! 

2377.1 1674.0 
d379.7 d212.9 

- - 28.7% 
NMF NMF 

59.9% 62.8% 
40.1% 37.2% 
4005.9 3650.5 
31 80.6 2752.7 

NMF NMF 
NMF NMF 
NMF NMF 
NMF NMF 
NMF NMF ! 

1800 
dl60 
NMF 
NMF - 
65.0% 
35.0% - 
3380 
2890 
NMF 
NMF 
NMF - 
NMF 
NMF - 

2100 
d37.0 
NMF 
NMF 

66.5% 
33.5% - 
2925 
3400 
2.0% 
NMF 
NMF 
NMF 
NMF 

NMF I AFUDC % to Net Profit 
60.5% Long-Term Debt Ratio 

(Interest not earned.) 
Leases, Uncapitalized Annual rentals $27.4 mill. 

Pension Assets-12103 $288.4 mill. Oblig. $330.4 
mill. 

Pfd Stock None 
Common Stock 195,615,486 shs. 
as of 4130104 
MARKET CAP: $625 million (Small C a d  

ELECTRIC OPERATING STATISTICS 
2001 2002 2003 

%Chan e Retajl Sales (KWH) +22.6 +.7 +1.9 
Aug ln$t Use {MW 5035 5314 5563 
Aug, hdust. Revr p hti 4.18 4.09 4.40 
Capacity at Peak(Mw NA N A  NA 
RiXLcad,e~mne~w) 2541 2639 2799 
Annual Load Factor ( h  NA NA NA 
I C ~ O ~  Custmen /yendl +5.5 +I .6 +I .B 

L 

lui 
 la 

tion of electricity & gas. Began discontinuing energy lrading and 
marketing in '02. Electric & gas service areas incl. MO, KS, MN, IA, 
GO. NE. MI. & British Columbia. Customers: 446.000 electric. 

Y I  
lied electric generation 

UtiliCorp United) provides regu- mercial, 29%; industrial, 16%; other, 13%. Generating sources, '03: 
coal, 33%; oil & gas, 27%; purchased, 40%. '03 reported deprec. 
rates: electric, 3.1%; gas, 3.0%. Has 3,200 employees, 112,000 
com. stockholders. Chairman, Pres. & CEO: Richard C. Green, Jr. 
Inc.: D L  Address: 20 West Ninth St., P.O. Box 13287, Kansas City, 
MO 64199-3287. Tel.: 816-421-6600. Internet: www.aquila.com. 

some unprofitable contracts that  are a 
legacy of its involvement in energy mar- 
keting. The company has stated that  it 
will be in the red in 2004, but i t  has not 
been more specific than that. I t  has not 
provided any guidance for 2005, but we ex- 
pect another, albeit smaller, deficit. 
Aquila is continuing to pursue rate re- 
lief. I t  had some catching up to do, a s  reg- 
ulatory matters weren't a t  the top of man- 
agement's focus when times were good in 
the energy-marketing business. This year, 
the utility was granted electric and gas 
rate increases of $37.5 million and $3.4 
million, respectively, in Missouri. Aquila 
has also filed for a $19 million (13%) elec- 
tric tariff hike in Kansas, with an  order 
due in early 2005. The utility wants an  in- 
terim increase of $10 million (6.8%) there. 
We advise investors to look elsewhere. 
Debt due in 2005 is less than $40 million, 
but a $430 million term loan is due in 
2006. Aquila believes it will have some op- 
tions for dealing with this obligation, in- 
cluding refinancing it, but the company's 
weak finances and the aforementioned liti- 
gation make it a cause for concern. 
Paul E. Debbas, CFA July 2, 2004 

and transportationldistribu- 

901'.000 'aas.' Electric rev. breakdown. '03: residential. 42%: corn: 

Aquila has sold its Canadian utility 
business. The price was over US$1 bil- 
lion, and the company netted an estimated 
US$637 million in cash. This was the last 
major asset sale in a divestiture program 
that began two years ago, after the power- 
trading markets collapsed and Aquila 
needed to raise funds for debt retirement. 
Litigation against Chubb Insurance is 
pending. Chubb has a surety obligation of 
up to $513 million in support of some of 
Aquila's long-term gas-supply contracts, 
and i t  wants to be released from this obli- 
gation unless Aquila posts collateral. 
Chubb also wants to prevent AquiIa from 
using the proceeds of the Canadian utility 
sale to retire $400 million of debt due in 
the second half of 2004. (Aquila had 
enough cash to repay this debt before it 
got the proceeds of the asset sale.) A judge 
issued a preliminary injunction restrain- 
ing Aquila from using $504 million of cash. 
Aquila is still losing money. The Cana- 
dian operations were profitable, and their 
sale was dilutive. Also, interest expense is 
still high; since Aquila's credit ratings are 
well below investment grade, its debt is a t  
high rates. And Aquila is still saddled with 

fixed Charge Cw. 1%) 191 NMF N M F  
ANNUAL RATES Past Past Est'd '01-'03 
ol change (per sh) 10 Yrs. 5 Yrs. to '07-'09 
Revenues 18.0% 4.0% -33.5% 
"Cash Flow" - - - - -6.5% 
Earnings - - - -  -13.5% 
Dividends -4.5% -11 .O% NMF 
Book Value -.5% -3.5% -14.0% - 
Cal- 

endar - 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
Cal- 

endar - 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 - 
Cal- 

endar - 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 

EARNINGS PER SHARE * I FUII 
Mar.31 Jun.30 Se~1.30 Dec.31 Year 

QUARTERLY REVENUES ($ mill.) 
Mar.31 Jun.30 Sep.30 Dec.31 

QUARTERLY DIVIDENDS PAID I Full 

FUII 
Year 

I 

A l  Diluted EPS. Excl. nonrecurrina aains 1 '01 '02 EPS don't add due to changes in 
s outslanding. Next earnings report due 
Aug. (B) Div'd suspended 11/02. (C) Incl. 
*ed charges. In '03: $1.96/sh. (Dl In mill.. - .  

8 - , 
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~ i i e s ~ :  loo, 301; l01.410 net; 02:(~*44j rift: shi 
adj. for split. (E) Rate base: Fair value. Rate al* 
lowed on com. eq. in MO in '98 (elec,): 
10.75%; earned on avg. com. eq., '03: NMF. 
Reaulatorv Climate: Averaae. 

'03, (71 a); 104, (1 le); gains (loss) on d~scont~n- 
ued operatms: '02, ($2.04); '03, 6$; '04, 17a. 

Company's Financial Strength C 
Stock's Price Stability 25 
Price Growth Persistence 15 
Earninas Predictabilitv 10 

ear 
def 
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--20d~v~ded Interest Rate rECHNICAL Raia9dOn4104 . . .. Re!ati"e 
b
)(rice strength --16 

BETA 1 25 (1.00 = Market) 3-for-2 spl~t 3199 3 
--12 

2007-09 PROJECTIONS indica,tes feces, M4Low:Ann'l Total -. ..'*... -. -8Price Gain Return _. ..,...%. -6.. '. -5 

N D  J F M A M  J J 
ioeuy 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
3pZons 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 
losell 0 0 0  0 0 0 2  0 0  --I-Insti tut ional  Decis ions 

1995 1996 
40.59 54.43 
3.34 2.85 
1.25 1.39 
1.15 1.17 
1.59 1.69 

13.72 14.55 
68.95 79.60 
15.0 13.4 
1.00 .84 

6.1% 6.3% 

2798.5 4332.3 
87.2 109.9 

40.1% 40.8% 
1.9% 2.2% 

55.8% 53.4% 
39.0% 42.1% 
2427.1 2753.7 
2279.6 2406.7 

5.9% 6.1% 
8.1% 8.6% 
9.0% 8.5% 
.8% 1.2% 

92% 87% 

ISS: Aauila, Inc. ( UtiliCorp United 1 ,~rovidesreau-
lated & nonreg;lated electric pneration and transportation/distriiu-
tion of electricity & gas. Began discontinuing energy trading and 
marketing in '02. Electric & gas service areas incl. MO, KS, MN, IA, 
CO, NE, Mt, & British Columbia. Customers: 449,000 electric, 
893,000 gas. Electric rev. breakdown, '03: residential, 42%; com-

Aquila has reached agreements with 
two insurors to terminate most of its 
prepaid gas-supply contracts. The com- 
pany will pay Chubb $485 million in sup- 
port of the surety bonds for two contracts, 
thereby settling litigation between the two 
companies, and will pay St. Paul $225 mil- 
lion in support of two other pacts. The four 
contracts represent 92% of Aquila's pre-
paid gas obligations. These transactions 
come a t  a steep price, but they will elimi- 
nate a big uncertainty that  Aquila had 
been facing and reduce the losses of the 
company's merchant-energy operation. 
Aquila sold some securities in the 
third quarter. It issued 46 million com-
mon shares a t  $2.55 each and sold $345 
million of debt that  will convert to common 
in 2007. The dilutive effect of these issu- 
ances caused the stock price to fall below 
$3 for a while; it had been trading between 
$3 and $5 for nearly 12 months. On the 
plus side, the issuances provided Aquila 
with some much-needed liquidity after it 
made the aforementioned payments to the 
insurers. Finally, the company also issued 
$220 million of debt to help retire a $430 

-4 
-3  

-2 

1 THIS -.. .. . VLARITI 
STOCK IUDEX 

1 yr. 21.9 13.4 -
-

5 yr. -84.7 54.2- I 
3 vr. -89.9 29.3 

2005 1 Q VALUE LINE PUB., INC. 17-09 
7.40 Revenues per sh 5.25 
.30 "Cash Flow" per sh .SO 

sh A hlild.30 Earninas ~ e r  

-Nil 
SO 

5.00 


375.00 

NMF 

Relative PIE Ratio NMF 
Ann'l Div'd Yield Nil~ A V ~  -

1800 Revenues ($mill) 2000 
Nil 

NMF 
NMF 

53.0% 

47.0%


I 
-
3275 


3030 Net p~ani  ($mill) ' , -3450 
Nd Return on Total Cap I 3.0% 

NMF Return on Shr. Equity NMF 
NMF Return on Com Equity NMF 
NMF Retained to Corn Eq NMF 
NMF All Div'ds to Net Prof NMF1 ti 


merc~al.29%; industrial. %: other. 13%. Generatina sources, '03: 
coal, 33%; oil & gas, 27%; purchased, 40%. '03 rGorted deprec. 
rates: electric, 3.1%; gas, 3.0%. Has 3,200 employees, 112,000 
corn. stockholders. Chairman, Pres. & CEO: Richard C. Green, Jr. 
Inc.: DE. Address: 20 West Ninth St., P.O. Box 13287, Kansas City, 
MO 64199-3287. Tel.: 816-421-6600. Internet: www.aquila.com. 

The bottom line remains in the red. 
Even after the termination of most of 
Aquila's prepaid gas contracts, its 
merchant-energy division will probably 
still post a hefty operating loss in 2005, 
which Aquila estimates will amount to $60 
million-$70 million. This loss, plus over 
$200 million in interest expense, will far 
outweigh the profit of $190 million-$200 
million that is achievable in the regulated 
utility operations. 
Some regulatory matters are pending. 
The most important one is in Missouri, 
where high gas prices and the absence of a 
fuel-adjustment clause are hurting the 
utility. So, Aquila has asked the commis- 
sion for permission to defer its unrecov-
ered gas costs until i t  can recoup them in 
rates. The utility expects a ruling by year- 
end and plans to file a general rate case 
next May. AIso, a $19.2 million electric 
rate application is pending in Kansas. 
We advise investors to bypass this un- 
timely stock. It's true that  Aquila's finan- 
cial picture is looking a little better, but 
finances are still subpar, and the bottom 
line will remain weak even to 2007-2009. 
Paul E. Debbas, CFA October 1, 2004 

CAPITAL STRUCTURE as of 6130104 
Total Debt $2628.7 mill. Due in 5 Yrs $991.9 mill. 
LT Debt $2207.0 mill. LT Interest $213.0 mill. 

(Interest not earned.) 
Leases, Uncapitalized Annual rentals $27.4 mill. 

Pension Assets-12103 $288.4 mill. Oblig. $330.4 
mill. 

Pfd Stock None 
Common Stock 195,689,185 shs. 
as of 7129104 
MARKET CAP: $600 million (Small Cap) 

ELECTRIC OPERATING STATISTICS 

(@) 4.18 4.09 4.404vi. Indusl. Revs per ~ W H  
2apacity at Peak (Mw NA NA NA 
RakLoad,Brnmer/dw) 2541 2639 2799 
Fnual Load Factor ( h  NA NA NA 
hChiwCuWh?fi!+md) +5.5 t1.6 11.8 

FixedCharge Cov. (%) 191 NMF NMF 
ANNUAL RATES Past Past Est'd '01-'03 
of change (per sh) 10 Yrs. 5 Yrs. to '07-'09 
Revenues 18.0% 4.0% -41.0% 
"Cash Flow" .. - - - -13.0% 
Earnings - - - - NMF 
Dividends -4.5% -11.0% NMF 
Book Value -.5% -3.5% -17.0%-
Cal- QUARTERLY REVENUES ($ mill.) FUII
endar Mar.31 Jun.30 Sep.30 Dec.31 Year 
2001 11980 10441 9316 8640 40377 
2002 767.4 656.0 542.4 411.3 2377.' 
2003 522.8 367.4 322.0 461.8 1674.( 
2004 553.2 335.3 335 476.5 1700 
- 600 350 350 500 
Gal. EARNINGS PER SHARE A

endar Mar.31 Jun.30 Sep.30 Dec.31 
2001 .69 .71 .58 .05 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005- d.09 d.08 d.07 d.06 
Cal- QUARTERLY DIVIDENDS PAID 
endar Mar.31 Jun.30 SepBO Dec.31 
2000 3 0  .30 .30 .30 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 

1800 
Full 
Year 
2.01 

6-30 
FUII 
Year 
1.20 

I 
million term loan tha t  was due in 2006. 

1 
(A) Diluted EPS. Excl. nonrecurring ains 298. '01 & '02 EPS don't add due to changes in adj. for split. (E) Rate base: Fair value. Rate al- Company's Financial Strength C 
(losses): '00, 30e; '01.41 L net; '02, (88.44) net; shares outstanding. Next earnings report due lowed on corn. e g  in MO in '98 (elec.): Stock's Price Stability 25 
'03, (716); '04, (56)net; gains (loss) on discon- early Nov. (B)Div'd suspended 11102. (C) Incl. 10.75%; earned on avg. corn. eq., '03: NMF. Price Growth Persistence 15 
tinued operations: '02, ($2.04); '03, 66; '04, deferred charges. In '03: $1.96/sh. (D) In mill., Regulatory Cllmate: Average. Earnings Predictability 10 
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Zacks.com Quotes and Research 

AQUILA lNC ILA (NYSE) Sponsored by: 

Aquila Inc. is an international energy and risk management company. It is one of the largest wholesalers of electricity 
and natural gas in North America, provides wholesale energy services in the United Kingdom and has a presence in 
Germany and Scandinavia. It also operates electricity and natural gas distribution networks in seven states and in 
~ a n a d a ,  Zealand and ~ustral ia. ~ e w  

General lnforrnation 
AQUILA INC 
20 West Ninth Street 
Kansas City, MO 64105 
Phone: 81 6 421-6600 
Fax: 81 6 467-3395 
Web: www.aquila.com 
Email: InvestorRelations@aquila.com 

Industry UTIL-ELEC PWR 
Sector: Utilities 

Fiscal Year End December 
Last Reported Quarter 12/31 104 
Next EPS Date 05/11/2005 

Price and Volume Information 

' Zacks Rank 

Yesterday's Close r - C I L A I  30-Day Clos ing  
"--""--"*" , 

Prices -1:::: 

52 Week High 

52 Week Low 

Beta 

20 Day Moving Average 

Target Price Consensus 

% Price Change 

4 Week 

12 Week 

YTD 

Share lnformation 

Shares Outstanding 
(millions) 

Market Capitalization 
(millions) 

Short Interest (shares) 

Short Ratio 

Last Split Date 

EPS lnforrnation 
Current Quarter EPS Consensus Estimate -0.12 

Current Year EPS Consensus Estimate -0.30 

Estimated Long-Term EPS Growth Rate 

Next EPS Report Date 0511 112005 

% Price Change Relative to S&P 500 

4 Week 12.15 

12 Week 7.94 

YTD 7.94 

Dividend lnformation 

Dividend Yield 0.00% 

Annual Dividend $0.00 

Payout Ratio 0.00 

Change in Payout Ratio 0.00 

Last Dividend Payout IAmount NA 1 $0.00 

Consensus Recommendations 
Current (I=Strong Buy, 5=Strong Sell) 

30 Days Ago 

60 Days Ago 

90 Days Ago 



Fundamental Ratios 

PIE EPS Growth Sales Growth 

Current FY Estimate: - vs. Previous Year 100.00% vs. Previous Year 
Trailing 12 Months: - vs. Previous Quarter 100.00% vs. Previous Quarter: 

PEG Ratio 

Price Ratios ROE ROA 

PriceIBook 0.82 12/31/04 -1 7.88 12131104 
PriceICash Flow - 09130/04 -19.52 09130104 

Price ISales 0.54 06/30104 -14.16 06130104 

Current Ratio Quick Ratio Operating Margin 

l2/3 1 104 1.81 12/31/04 1.63 12131104 
09130104 1.57 09130104 1.42 09130104 
06130104 1.71 06130104 1.64 06130104 

Net Margin Pre-Tax Margin Book Value 

1213 1 104 -32.88 I213 II04 -32.88 12131104 
09/30/04 -30.41 09130104 -30.41 09130104 
06130104 -30.33 06130104 -30.33 06130104 

Inventory Turnover Debt to Captial 

1213 1104 2.06 12131104 
09130104 1.75 09130104 
06130104 I.81 06130104 
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I, the undersigned, hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing 

docket was placed in the United States mail, postage prepaid, or hand-delivered this 30th 

day of March, 2005, to the following: 


W . ROBERT ALDERSON, JR . , ATTORNEY 
ALDERSON ALDERSON WEILER CONKLIN BURGHART & 
CROW LLC 

2101 SW 21ST STREET (66604) 

PO BOX 237 

TOPEKA, KS 66601-0237 

Fax: 232-1866 

boba@aldersonlaw.com 


JON R. EMPSON, SR VP, REGULATORY, LEGISLATIVE 

& GAS SUPPLY 
AQUILA, INC. 

D/B/A AQUILA NETWORKS - WPK / AQUILA NETWORKS 
- KG0 
1815 CAPITOL AVENUE 

OMAHA, NE 68102 


LESLIE PARRETTE, JR., SR VP, GENERAL COUNSEL 

& CORP SECRETARY 
AQUILA, INC. 

D/B/A AQUILA NETWORKS - WPK / AQUILA NETWORKS 
- KG0 
20 WEST 9TH STREET 

KANSAS CITY, MO 64105 

Fax: 816-783-5175 


DAVID SPRINGE, CONSUMER COUNSEL 

CITIZENS' UTILITY RATEPAYER BOARD 

1500 SW ARROWHEAD ROAD 

TOPEKA, KS 66604 

Fax: 785-271-3116 

d.springe@kcc.state.ks.us

* * * *  Hand Deliver * * * *  

JAMES P. ZAKOUFLA, ATTORNEY 

SMITHYW & ZAKOURA, CHTD. 
7400 W 11OTH STREET 

SUITE 750 

OVERLAND PARK, KS 662 10 

Fax: 913-661-9863 


JAMES G. FLAHERTY, ATTORNEY 

ANDERSON & BYRD, L.L.P. 
216 SOUTH HICKORY 

PO BOX 17 

OTTAWA, KS 66067 

Fax: 785-242-1279 

-jflaherty@abrfh.com 


RANDAL P. MILLER, VICE PRES. FINANCE & 
TREASURER 

AQUILA, INC. 

D/B/A AQUILA NETWORKS - WPK / AQUILA NETWORK,' 
- KG0 
20 WEST 9TH STREET 

KANSAS CITY, MO 64105 


NIKI CHRISTOPHER, ATTORNEY 

CITIZENS' UTILITY RATEPAYER BOARD 

1500 SW ARROWHEAD ROAD 

TOPEKA, KS 66604 

Fax: 785-271-3116 

n.christopher@kcc.state.ks.us

* * * *  Hand Deliver * * * *  

WENDY TATRO, ASSISTANT GENERAL COUNSEL 

KANSAS CORPORATION COMMISSION 

1500 SW ARROWHEAD ROAD 

TOPEKA, KS 66604-4027 

Fax: 785-271-3354 

w.tatro@kcc.state.ks.us 

* * * *  Hand Deliver * * * *  

Niki Christopher 



	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


